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Mission Statement

ARV Ean

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and franchisees to
appreciate our education, products and services, which are made by the love and kindness of our
founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made modern ladies beautiful, confident and wealthy.
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NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
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(alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin) (Chairperson)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
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Corporate Information
NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Bird & Bird

4/F, Three Pacific Place

1 Queen'’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Regjistrar Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Taiwan Cooperative Bank
No. 227, Sec. 3, Cheng Teh Road
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co,, Ltd.
8F, No. 168, Jingmao 2nd Road
Taipei

Taiwan

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Jingansi Sub-branch
1700 Beijing Road (W)

Shanghai

The PRC

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Branch, Hongkou Sub-branch

1/F Gulf Building

53 Huangpu Road

Shanghai

The PRC

WEBSITE

www.nblife.com/ir
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Financial Highlights

Br A5 2

Selected Financial Data MRYERE FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014
HK$'000 (except pershare data) T 7T (BREUERI) —T—2F —T—4% T =ZT—=F ZZZ-M0NF

MHEE MHEE MHEE BEE BBEE
Revenue ON 485389 591,295 483438 439421 505,761
Cost of sales SHEMAR 130,007 122,162 103,592 106,321 116,981
Gross profit EFI 355,382 469,133 379,846 333,100 388,780
Operating profit IR T 75,848 173,647 155,251 83,052 116,274
Profit for the year REFET] 30,710 115,172 119,108 58459 71,480
Dividends A& ) 160,168 170,179 45,648 52,655 105,871
EPS - basic BRARN — EX $00160 $0.0580 $0.0600 $0.0290 $0.0360
DPS FRRREH $0.0800 $0.0850 $0.0228 $0.0263 $0.05288
Return on Equity (ROE) [:eNEIE; 40% 14.6% 15.9% 74% 9.2%
Return on Assets (ROA) BERHR 33% 12.0% 13.5% 6.0% 7.3%

SEAES

natural beauty
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ACTIVITIES BREAKDOWN (%)
BEZE D 2EFHE (%)

1.4% 98.6%

Service Product

AR % & m

Financial Highlights
MBRE
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GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% 2] R
Turnover by R&ith i B 5
geographical region LR 2014 2013 Changes
—E=—MEF —E-=F EE)
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET % FAT % AT %
PRC AR B K R 420,337 83.2% 359,473 81.8% 60,864 16.9%
Taiwan ey 80,639 15.9% 74,718 17.0% 5921 7.9%
Others Ef 4,785 0.9% 5,230 12% (445) -8.5%
Total 5T 505,761 100.0% 439421 100.0% 66,340 15.1%

Turnover of the Group in 2014 increased by 15.1% to HK$505.8 million compared
with HK$439.4 million in 2013. The rise was mainly due to an increase of HK$64.4
million in product sales, which segment contributed to 98.6% of our total
turnover, as a result of higher store productivity in PRC and Taiwan.

Turnover in the PRC market increased by 16.9% from HK$359.5 million in 2013 to
HK$420.3 million in 2014, and turnover in the Taiwan market also increased by
7.9% to HK$80.6 million compared with HK$74.7 million in 2013.

NEEZ LR - T — = 4 #9439,400,000

BT EF15.1% % — Z — P4 #9505,800,00078

Lo BRANREZMNT &M S 2 ELE

ﬁﬁﬂ = T BB EE A 8 S BB 3 DN64,400,00078
PR ML A SR B AR SRR A 98.6% ©

FREAREMBZEXETER _ZT—=FH
359,500,00078 JT 1 HN16.9%Z%E — T — I 4 Ay
420,300,000/ 7T : M /Emin s &R
T — = 4F 274,700,000/ TLIE II7.9%E —F —
PO 4 #980,600,00078 7T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

Bf#SEIEE (@)

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased ~ Efiith[& (B 1EEHE - HRAE RREF) 2

by 85% from HK$5.2 million in 2013 to HK$4.8 million in 2014. Contribution &8 T #8.5% * B8 —F — =4 25,200,000/ 7T

from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 0.9% of the Group's N #xZE = Z —PO4F 2 4,800,000/ 7T © % F i@

turnover, HAKRBSEE L EREFEM - BhEREE
ERRR0.9% °

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Group's overall gross profit margin improved from 75.8% in 2013t0 769% in  AS B BB ER EMNEHRH T —=F 1
2014 due to an increase in the proportion of higher-margin products within our ~ 75.8%20 & ZE —ZF — U #)76.9% * [RE/ARE

sales mix. EEREGHEHEPERIBERS ZER AL
EFFTE -
Turnover by activities BREBE| D 2EX£E 2014 2013 Changes
—E-NE —E—=F EE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT FBT %
Products Em
PRC AR B A 415,827 356,392 58,935 16.5%
Taiwan ae 77,969 72,098 5871 8.1%
Others Hith 4,784 5230 (445) -8.5%
Total et 498,580 434,220 64,360 14.8%
Services R
PRC ey NS 4,511 2,581 1,930 74.8%
Taiwan =y 2,670 2,620 50 1.9%
Total yat 7,181 5,201 1,080 38.1%

BAXEYREERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) MO ()
Turnover by activities  IR¥EFEEI D 2 EXEE 2014 2013 Changes
—2-NF —E-=F £
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

THET % FAT % FAT %
Products Ef 498,580 98.6% 434,220 98.8% 64,360 14.8%
Services 7% 7,181 1.4% 5,201 1.2% 1,980 38.1%
Total st 505,761 100.0% 439,421 100.0% 66,340 15.1%
Products Em
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of ARNEBEIXB[BAE| RPEERIEE#EE
products, including skin care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health Ef - EREM » F2E M - BERG &ML
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand. Sales of RERIAIZIEED - ERHEARNERTEY

products are the Group's key revenue source and primarily come from franchised

spas, self-owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Sales
of products in 2014 amounted to HK$498.6 million, or 98.6% of the Group's

total revenue, representing an increase of HK$64.4 million or by 14.8% when

compared with sales of HK$434.2 million or 98.8% of the Group's total revenue

in 2013. The increase in product sales was mainly driven by the growth in such
segment in the PRC market by 16.5% to HK$415.8 million in 2014 compared with

HK$356.9 million in 2013.

AR - BEXEZREMBKEFL - BELE
KEPFLERBEERAEE  —T—WFZEM
$H £ %8 3£498,600,000/8 7T (S kAN & E 48 Ug A
98.6%) * B —F — = 7§45 58434,200,00078
T (S A £ B 42 U A 98.8%) 3 H164,400,0007%
TLE148% c EmiHEREIEMEZHNFEKX
BEThi5 2 S5 E R =T — = 4 #9356,900,00078
T EFH16.5%% = F — PO #9415,800,00078 7T

Service income i e 2014 2013 Changes
—F-mF —T=F &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET % FH&TT % FHET %
Training income s 368 5.1% 342 6.6% 26 7.6%
SPA service income KBRS W 4,797 66.8% 4115 79.1% 682 16.6%
Others Eith 2,016 28.1% 744 143% 1272 171.0%
Total 5T 7,181 100.0% 5,201 100.0% 1,080 38.1%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Services
Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and other

services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. Currently, the Group has one self-owned spa in China and 3 self-
owned spas in Taiwan.

Service income is solely derived from the Group's self-owned spas. The Group
does not share any service income generated from spas run by franchisees
under its current franchise arrangements. In 2014, service income increased by
38.1% to HKS7.2 million compared with HKS5.2 million in 2013.

Other income

Other income decreased by 7.5% from HKS$19.9 million in 2013 to HK$184
million in 2014. Other income mainly comprised interest income, rental income
from other properties and financial refunds of HK$13.5 million, HK$2.3 million
and HK$2.1 million respectively in 2014.

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
decreased to 34.1% in 2014 compared with 40.0% in 2013. It decreased by
HKS$3.1 million from HK$175.6 million in 2013 to HK$172.5 million in 2014.
Advertising and promotion ("A&P") expenses maintained at 7.3% of the Group’s
total turnover in 2014 compared with 2013, while increased by HKS$4.7 million
from HK$32.1 million in 2013 to HK$36.8 million in 2014. Our focus in 2014 was
mainly on supporting franchisees to increase sell-through activities via customer
events, indoor salons or roadshows so that they could maintain a healthy
inventory level. We will adjust allocations of A&P expenses according to our
formulated strategies. Other key expenses include salaries of HK$62.7 million,
travel and entertainment expenses of HK$8.0 million, depreciation charges of
HK$14.7 million as well as rentals of offices and sales counters of HK$26.1 million
in 2014.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Bt S EIEE ()

R
BBUERE BB ELRER LR - BIIR
H A AR o

AEEFEBEBEELKEPORHENEZ
B XRRKERS - BAT > AEREEREA
MEHA —FBEEKEKEPLLEREHA =
REERLERERL

R EEREAEER 2 BEBLEKERD o
RBITMREERY - REETRESGMEE
KEKBER LB Z AR RERE - R=ZF—
UF - RSWEER —F — = 25,200,000/ 7T
H#A138.1% % 7,200,00078 7T °

H bz

H bWz B —F — = 219,900,000 7T &k
7.5%% —F — U4 218,400,000 7T c R =&
—F - HEEZ0EN B - iy
e WaE kIR - 25 £13,500,000
ATT + 2,300,000/ 7T 52,100,000 7T ©

DHERITHEAX
NDIERHEERGASEEEE B AT
T —=—F7400% NEZE T —IIFAI34.1% °
ZEBERARMA3,1000008 T T —=F2
175,600,000/ 7% £ = F — U 4 ,2.172,500,000
Bre _E—NFHNESEREEBERIERT
REFBEEBEN/3% TH-_TE—=F2
32,100,000 JT 32 504,700,000 TTE =& — Y
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HEFA S 7 $26,100,00078 7T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution and administrative expenses (Continued)

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$1.3 million, or 1.5%, to HK$89.8
million in 2014 compared with HK$91.1 million in 2013. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including non-cash share
based payment) of HK$28.1 million, legal and professional fees of HKS$15.7
million, depreciation charges of HK$12.2 million and office and utilities expenses
of HK$6.9 million.

Other expenses
Other expenses increased by HK$25.4 million, from HK$3.2 million in 2013 to
HK$28.6 million in 2014. Other expenses for the year mainly included accruals of
HK$6.2 million for tax audit on the PRC tax affairs of a PRC subsidiary for the years
2012 and 2013, and impairment of HK$22.4 million against the other receivables
and the fixed asset.

Profit before tax

Taking into account higher gross profit, and lower distribution and administrative
expenses, profit before tax increased by 40.0% from HK$83.1 million in 2013 to
HKS116.3 million in 2014, and the pre-tax profit margin increased to 23.0% in
2014 from 18.9% in 2013.

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased by HK$20.2 million to HK$44.8 million in 2014
compared with HK$24.6 million in 2013. The effective tax rate of the Group in
2013 and 2014 were 29.6% and 38.5% respectively. The higher effective tax rate
in 2014 was mainly due to a decrease in tax credit utilized in 2014. If the same
tax credit was utilized in 2014 as in 2013, the effective tax rate of the Group
would have been 29.9%.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year increased by 22.3% from HK$58.5 million in 2013 to HK$71.5
million in 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2014 was approximately HK$165.1
million (HK$108.3 million in 2013). The increase was mainly due to changes in
working capital (decrease in trade receivables). As at 31 December 2014, the
Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$583.3 million (HK$507.4
million as at 31 December 2013) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014, the
Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’
equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 were 3.7 times and 3.6 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and notes thereto.
With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and it has sufficient financial resources to finance its commitments and to

meet its working capital requirements.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in Renminbi and New Taiwan
Dollars as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2014, approximately 87.1% (79.1% as at 31 December 2013) of
the Group’s bank balances and cash was denominated in Renminbi, while
approximately 11.8% (15.6% as at 31 December 2013) in New Taiwan Dollars.
The remaining 1.1% (5.3% as at 31 December 2013) was denominated in US
Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and Ringgit Malaysia. The Group continues to adopt a
conservative approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. It reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge against such risks when necessary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEETWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW E4y A E1)
Turnover by
geographic region Rt B9 2 B EEE 2014 2013 Changes
—E-ME —E-=f k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THTT T %
PRC Bl KB
Products ES 415,827 356,892 58,935 16.5%
Services R7 4,510 2,581 1,929 74.7%
PRC Total R B K B AR ST 420,337 359,473 60,864 16.9%
Taiwan =y}
Products ES 77,969 72,098 5,871 8.1%
Services BRTE 2,670 2620 50 1.9%
Taiwan Total BEmst 80,639 74,718 5921 7.9%
Others Hith
Products Em 4,785 5,230 (445) -8.5%
Services A7 - - - -
Others Total HE s 4,785 5,230 (445) -8.5%
The PRC Market AR ER K BE TR 45

Despite slowdown in PRC's economic growth, the Group's turnover in the PRC
market increased by 16.9% in 2014 to HK$420.3 million compared with HK$359.5
million in 2013. The increase was driven by increase in sales of products,
mainly due to the adoption of “direct own retail” management system to get
better control over franchisees to drive higher store productivity. Gross margin
increased from 76.9% in 2013 to 78.7% in 2014, as a result of more sales of

higher-margin products such as NB-1, and lower promotion discount.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Taiwan Market

The Group’'s turnover in the Taiwan market also increased by 7.9% from HK$74.7
million in 2013 to HK$80.6 million in 2014 due to the adoption of door-by-
door management via franchisee differentiation to utilize company resources
efficiently. Gross margin increased from 63.0% in 2013 to 67.7% in 2014, as a
result of more sales of higher-margin products such as NB-1 and Bio, and lower
promotion discount.
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Distribution channels DEHRE
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by RERREESZ owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership EHEE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter  Counter Total

mBEEE AELE  KERL  ERELE BELE iE 25

KERD KB
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Asat 31 December 2014 R=-Z—-NE+-A=+—H

PRC i E A BE 1,073 1 1,074 - 14 14 1,088

Taiwan =y 257 3 260 - - - 260

Others Hit 30 - 30 - - - 30

Total et 1,360 4 1,364 - 14 14 1,378
Franchisee Self Self

Store Number by RRAREDZ owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total

Ownership ESEEIE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter  Counter Total

MBEHEE  BELE  KERL  EHALE  BELE Hif i)

KERL  KERL @t i i 45t et

Asat 31 December 2013 W-ZE—=F+-A=+—H

PRC lEiYN = 1,099 1 1,100 12 18 30 1,130

Taiwan 8 270 3 273 - - - 273

Others Ht 30 - 30 - - - 30

Total st 1,399 4 1403 12 18 30 1433
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

£ 9E] - NE))
DEYEE ()

2014 2013
2014 2013 Average Average
Average sales SRR Average Average sales sales
per store TFIHERE store* store* per store per store Changes
—2-NFE —T-=F =—B-NF —T-=F
5] B SRR BEE
FHBE* TOHE TUSEE TORER 28
HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT %
PRC A RE 1,109.0 1,1515 379,000 312,000 67,000 21.5%
Taiwan A 266.5 284.0 303,000 263,000 40,000 15.2%
Group total** TR 1,375.5 14355 364,000 302,000 62,000 20.5%
* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period ~ * FHEMERE A (BT +BARE) 2
total)/2 HE
** Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and store ~ ** EBERBFTRERES RFARE®RASREY
count. EEERIEHHAE -

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2014, there were 1,364 spas and 14 concessionary counters. Of
these, 1,360 were franchised spas, and 4 spas and 14 concessionary counters
were directly operated by the Group. No concessionary counters were entrusted
to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who are
responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to use only
Natural Beauty or “NB" products in their spas. A wide array of services including
hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis are provided in
all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the concessionary counters
in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 35 new stores were opened and 74 stores were closed
during the year ended 31 December 2014. Average sales per store increased
from HK$302,000 in 2013 to HK$364,000 in 2014.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which allows
it to maintain its competitive edge, to continuously improve the quality of its
existing products and develop new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas skin-care companies on technological development. The bio-
technology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported from
Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB's products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experiences, together with Dr. Tsai's 40-year-plus industry experience and
knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products. NB
principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products and adopts special
formulae to cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB products
accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome
and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1 product
family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance and
slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to protect
the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2014, the Group’s flagship NB-1 products accounted for more than 40% of
total product sales. Sales of NB-1 branded products reached HKS$217 million
in 2014. With effective product line rationalization plan, NB-1 Revital series
was successfully re-launched as home care product line to increase product
consumption and brand loyalty. The new products received good response from
franchisees and achieved strong sales, especially NB-1 Revital Sleeping Mask.
With effective sampling plan, NB-1 Revital Sleeping Mask received very positive
feedback in product efficacy among consumers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEETWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 623 employees, of whom 513
were based in the PRC, 107 in Taiwan and 3 in other countries and regions. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2014 was approximately
HK$125.4 million (HK$122.7 million in 201
costs of HK$16.8 million (HKS$17.8 million in 2013) and stock option expenses
of HKS$1.1 million (HK$1.0 million in 201
are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are

3), including retirement benefit related

3). Competitive remuneration packages

reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

On 4 April 2014 and 2 December 2014, the Company granted share options to
certain key employees to subscribe for a maximum of 34,536,239 shares and
7,607,983 shares, respectively (please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 4 April 2014 and 2 December 2014, respectively for details).

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$18.5 million in 2014 was mainly related to
the POS system upgrades amounting to HK$4.7 million and skin test machine
(Wood's machine, Iris and PC device) amounting to HKS$5.1 million, production
equipment amounting to HK$2.9 million and IT infrastructure amounting to
HKS$1.6 million.
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OUTLOOK

Benefited by growing household income and rising awareness of personal
appearance and well-being among Chinese consumers, beauty and personal

care will maintain gradual growth in the next few years.

With the escalating rental and labor costs in China, we will continue to pursue
a prudent growth strategy and implement the following strategies so as to
proactively strengthen our position as a leading skin care brand and spa operator
in the Greater China Region.

- We will expand “direct own retail” management system to help our
franchisees to increase the productivity as our major growth driver in the

near future.

- We will build Natural Beauty Business School to provide systematic training
to our franchisees, including professional skills and store management to
provide better service to customers.

- We will enhance our operational efficiency by streamlining our
organizational structure, implementing a more integrated go-to-market
process and improving our cost-control measures.

- We will focus our marketing and promotional efforts on enabling more
sell-through by our franchisees.

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR E R

RE

HXERXEWA L RFEHEE MR BT E
BEAEETMERE - ERREFIDTREAZE
BRFESIER o

BEZE B RRETET E AR MATRA - &
PREERETRENIERRBANERIA TE
B - ARESINR IR ARERIES—EEEL
HY [ an R 7K B R DR B YA -

- BMKBEBEATEEZZTEIEERR  BEY
B MBEZINEES - (ERTARK
KM T RIERE S -

- BABEVAAXEBRREHREEZRDN
HBelka TINERE - BREEEREMESR
EEARHRE MRS TEE -

— BARBEARSERE  BRAKESKMD
BEME  BRE—FEEM—BHER
MSHRE - WkE R PIR R AR ZE B 18
b °

—  BMSSEH R EEMERTHEER
PR EERE L HHERE -

BAXEYRIRERAT —T-NFFH 23



=

Repo
TRE

t on Corporate Governance
#&m

m]}*

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited firmly believes that strong corporate
governance is the foundation to delivering the corporate objective of
maximizing return to its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the
governance structure is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”)
which is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance transparency,
accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from
our shareholders and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of
shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance
on how corporate governance principles are applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2014, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code on Corporate Governance”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Hong
Kong Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The following summarises the Company's corporate governance
practices and explains deviations, if any, from the Code on Corporate

Governance.
In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records

The Board currently comprises twelve members, consisting of
three Executive Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board meets four times
during a year as a minimum and, during 2014, it met seven times.
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December
2014 are as follows:

z‘g/
A.

n
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ANEEERER @

=

Al.

EEHFERIFIIRE

EXeRdNREESER  Hhe
E3RMITEE  SEIFATESEM
AEBUPTEE -EFEEF

ELBTORER  R-T—MF

BETLREHE - BE-Z2—NF
+=A=+—ALFER - S EE
EZBEIRBMANE  BhE

ENEFEEHR ZEEFZRES
ERMBRAG 2 HERCE - AR
EERIJIEHWT

Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee ~ Board  General Training
Meetirg Meetilg Meetirg Meetirg Meeting  Meeting ~ Courses
FHZSE ENZEE BIZEE REZBE EIE RRBEY
€2 &3 &2 &2 @3 e mume
Executive Directors BiTES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu EREET /a n/a 44 0N 17 01 Notea
Tam Tam fifita
Mr. LEE MingTa PHERE n/a /3 WE /a 0 0 Notea
fER  AER MNER MEA fifita
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng FEiEt 03 na n/a n/a " 0 Notea
~Nam  AER MNEA fifsta
Non-Executive Directors FuiTES
M. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT i 33 n/a 44 0 /i 111 Noteb
TER it
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan” BETRLY n/a a /a a 1/6 01 Noteb
el AER MNER MEA fitzth
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina RERLT n/a 34 n/a n/a 6/1 01 Notea
Gyl R MNER fifita
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin® ARX LD n/a na 33 a 6/7 o1 Notea
TEm  TER TEm fifita
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu gt n/a 4 3/4 n/a 5/7 01 Notea
T T fizea
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK® EFHEED n/a n/a 7 n/a 1/1 na  Notea
Ta TER Tam TER Wi
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHER ST 33 4/4 4/4 22 7 11 %}ng a))%b
Titalb
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON FxRELL 33 3/4 n/a 2 6/7 11 Noteb
ol Hfith
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long B L 33 3/4 n/a 0 6/7 01 Notea
TER fizta
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BPLRE 33 44 34 22 1 0/1 %)t\g a
\ Ea

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person had appointed another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)
Notes:

m Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan resigned as a Non-Executive Director on
29 October 2014. Six Board meetings were held on or before 29
October 2014.

) Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin ceased to be a member of the Executive
Committee on 29 October 2014. One Executive Committee meeting
was held before 29 October 2014.

(3) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee on 29 October
2014. One Board meeting was held after 29 October 2014 and one
Executive Committee meeting was held on or after 29 October 2014.

(@) Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training
course(s) that was/were not organized by the Group.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) and
the respective Charters of the committees.

The agenda of Board meeting or committee meeting and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Director of Legal and the Company
Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advising the Board on corporate governance
and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company's Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the Code on

Corporate Governance.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'
and officers'liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising

from corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu serves as the Chairperson, while Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta are the Vice Chairmen. Ms. CHANG
Karen Yi Fen serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of
the Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are separate. The
Chairperson focuses on Group strategic and Board issues while the
Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for operations
and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present. Since the Chairperson is also an Executive
Director of the Company, respective Independent Non-Executive
Directors are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and, three Non-Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-Executive Directors are also
members of the Executive Committee, it was considered there were
ample opportunities for the Chairperson to communicate with
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors), therefore no separate meetings were held between the
Chairperson and the Non-Executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company from time to time pursuant to the Hong Kong Listing

Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board, at all times,
met the requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board (there are
four Independent Non-Executive Directors out of twelve Directors)
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
We consider all Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts, including Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms, and are subject
to re-election.

Code provision A4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG
Shieu Yeing Christina, Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin, Ms. FENG Janine
Junyuan (resigned on 29 October 2014) and Mr. Gregory Michael
ZELUCK (appointed on 29 October 2014) did not enter into service
contracts with the Company as they are employees of Carlyle Asia
Investment Advisors Limited, an entity established in Hong Kong.
Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited has offices in Hong Kong,
Mumbai, Seoul, Beijing, Shanghai, Singapore and Sydney. Carlyle
Asia Investment Advisors Limited acts as the Asian investment
advisor to various Asian focused investment funds managed by The
Carlyle Group.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
("AGM"). Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER,
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Tze-
Kaing will retire by rotation according to the Articles and all of
them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the notice of
the AGM the reason why we consider the independent non-
executive director is still independent and our recommendation
to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-election of such
independent non-executive director. During the year ended 31
December 2014, none of the existing Independent Non-Executive
Directors has served on the Board for more than nine years.

Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules

Directors’ Positions Held
On 29 October 2014 -

(i) Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan resigned as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company;

(i) Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin ceased to be a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company; and

(i) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK was appointed as a Non-
Executive Director (for a term of three years) and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Hong Kong Listing Rules (Continued)

Other Major Appointments

0]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Subsequent to the deregistration of Association of Beauty
Technique in Taipei and Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in
Taiwan, Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu (Executive Director of the Company)
ceased to be the Chairman of the above Associations.

On 30 March 2015, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (Non-
Executive Director of the Company) ceased to be a director
of Hyundai Communications & Network Co. Limited, listed on
the Korea Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 126560).

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company) ceased to be the Advisory Board member

of Intelligence Squared Asia following its disbandment.

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company) ceased to be the Chairman of Financial
Literacy & Education Association but continues to be a

director of such Association.

Renewal of Directors’ Service Contracts

On 2 December 2014, the Board approved the renewal of the
Director’s Service Contract of each of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE

Ming-Ta and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as Executive Directors, and Dr.

SU Sh-Hsyu as Non-Executive Director, for a term of three years

commencing on 1 January 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Chairman), Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Dr.
TSAIl Yen-Yu and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors and having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
annually and making recommendation to the Board on selection of
candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy.
It also assesses the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination Committee Charter)
are available on the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir and the
Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

34

A5.

Aé6.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in year 2014.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee had considered and recommended, among other
things, the appointment of Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK as a Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee with
effect from 29 October 2014.

During year 2014, the Nomination Committee conducted an annual
review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision A.5.2 of the Code
on Corporate Governance. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained and no material matter was identified during the year

under review.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Hong Kong Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Two out of four Independent Non-Executive Directors are also
members of the Executive Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2014 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 25 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standards of the Model Code have been complied with throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by employees of the Company
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Company pursuant to code provision A6.4. No incident of
non-compliance with the Model Code or the Company’s Guidelines
by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted after making
reasonable enquiry.

Continuing Development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Company organized two Directors' trainings
(one in Hong Kong and one in Taiwan) on cyber security and
privacy and data security.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

B.

36

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee now comprises four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-
Executive Director, namely Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Chairperson),
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG
Tze-Kaing, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-Executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director was involved in determining his or her own
remuneration. It also ensures that remuneration levels should
be sufficient to attract and retain directors to run the Company
successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’'s website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2014

KATHEEERER @
A

A7.

(&)

BERRHREM
ARRBNTERERNEFEME
Bz Eem R -

N

FEEXH—MNBRITEES
SEZRESHAMNSL=A
ZEBEE -

7

BREEABTHEBEEE SR
REMESHRESSTAMIFIEN
A

EreXheBaHESR
EXRBEKEBER -

B. EENSREEANEFHRESS

KRR
Bl. ¥MZESE

FNEESRANEBYIERITE
. EWTESER —RBIEWNTE
WK DR AEREEZL (£
@ XJE) - Francis GOUTENMACHER
FiE s BRIGRE A - BT E -
FRIESE T M E e o

FNEEERETRBRETNT
B ZHMBOR MR - FHET
EE2RARMERNTES Z R
BRGR  URBEXRNEFTSE
ZERNBTESE - FRTEFERD
MEBABZHHETS -

EETERESNSREEARS
ey TIERS - HNE B @RI &
EREFLEEBEEESFHM - %
M 8 & IE HEIRFT BNk £ - AR
SIFBBERAKINEEARRT]

FMEZEEnACMBEESINE
BigsE -  FNEEg 2 EB
#HE (FHNEELFE) AR
AL (www.nblife.com/ir) REERZ
FréduL &R -

m%/



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2014. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees; reviewed and recommended granting
of share options to employees and senior management of the
Group under the Company’'s Share Option Scheme; reviewed
and recommended the renewal of Directors’ Service Contracts
of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as
Executive Directors and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu as Non-Executive Director.
With reference to the Remuneration Committee Charter, the
Remuneration Committee members had carefully reviewed and
considered the contribution of each of the Directors to the Group,
the Directors’ experience in the beauty and spa business and the
market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.

C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C

38

C1.

Cc2.

Financial reporting (Continued)
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 76
to 77.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and report to
regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management system and
system of internal controls and compliance with best practices. The
Chief Executive Officer and Finance Vice President also report to the
Audit Committee on key findings regarding internal controls. The
Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues to the
full Board.

The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

.

Internal controls (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has
conducted reviews of the internal control system and considered
the internal control system of the Group has been implemented
effectively.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman), Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER,
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing
Christina and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is
a former partner of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information it
requires from any employee and all employees are directed to co-
operate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice; and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty. The Audit
Committee is also responsible to perform corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Code on Corporate
Governance.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2014. During the year 2014, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2013 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2014 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2014,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2015.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which form part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$3,777,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$25,000 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D1.

D2.

Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- Long-term objectives and strategies;

= Extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- Preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- Material banking facilities;

- Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

- Annual internal controls assessment.

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with
specific terms of reference setting out their roles and functions
available at the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee now comprises three Non-Executive
Directors, one Executive Director and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Chairman),
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr.
Francis GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (KPIs) and track

performance.

The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the attendance records are set out
under “Directors’ Attendance and Training Records” on page 25 of
this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

There was one AGM held since the issue of the last annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the annual general meeting. Dr.
TSAl Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Board, was unable to attend
the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 16 May 2014
(2014 AGM") due to other overseas commitments. The Board had
arranged for Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, the Vice Chairman of the
Company and the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Group, who is well versed in all business activities and operations of
the Group, to attend and chair the 2014 AGM on behalf of Dr. TSAI

Yen-Yu and to respond to shareholders' questions.

Two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER (Member of the Audit, Remuneration, Executive
and Nomination Committees) and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON
(Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and member of the
Audit and Nomination Committees) also attended the 2014 AGM.

The Company will optimize the planning of general meetings,
give adequate time to all Directors to accommodate their work
arrangement and provide all necessary support for their presence
and participation in general meetings such that all Directors will be
able to attend future general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
E1.  Effective communication (Continued)
The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2014
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Memorandum and
Articles of Associations of the Company, which is available at the
Company’s website (www.nblife.com/ir) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of
Directors by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication
Policy are available for download from the Company's website
(www.nblife.com/ir).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles is also available on the Company's website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2014 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2014 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2014
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2014
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of
the Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

Investor relations
We consider it important to have dialogues with institutional
shareholders based on mutual understanding of objectives.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an external service provider

and has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. Her

main contact persons at the Company are Ms. CHEN, Li-Ting (Finance Vice
President) and Ms. Jenny ZHU (Director of Legal).

Ms. HO has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year 2014.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EENRGAREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI' YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN)

Aged 67, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE Ming-
Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(Executive Director) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director), is an Executive
Director and member of both the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee. She has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY
(HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. Dr. TSAI has been awarded
numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the US.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

“Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
"Ji Qing Chuang Ye" of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LEE MING-TA (ALIAS LEE MING-TAH)

Aged 67, is the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director of the Group. He is the
husband of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, whom is the Chairperson and an Executive Director
of the Group. Mr. LEE is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director)
and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director). Prior to joining the Group in 1993,
Mr. LEE had worked for various financial institutions at senior management level
for over 10 years in corporate management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated
in Fengchia University in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and
Insurance. He has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY
(HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU CHIEN-CHENG

Aged 43, the son of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director) and Mr.
LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and he is the elder brother
of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu who is also a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng was a Non-Executive Director and re-designated as Executive
Director effective from 15 December 2011. He is involved in the financial
management and strategic management of the Group at Board level. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee since 7 February 2013. Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng graduated from the University of Westminster in UK with a master degree
of business administration and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.
He has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May
2001 and 11 July 2008, respectively. He is currently also a director of some of our

British Virgin Islands, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU SH-HSYU

Aged 41, is the daughter of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director)
and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the younger
sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director). Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been an
Executive Director since 21 September 2004 until she was redesignated as a
Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009, was further redesignated as
an Executive Director on 15 December 2011 and was redesignated as a Non-
Executive Director on 7 February 2013. She is also a member of both the
Audit Committee and Executive Committee of the Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Master of Science
degree in industrial relations and human resources management and obtained
her PhD in international and comparative education from Columbia University
in New York, United States. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been actively engaged in the
marketing and business development of the Natural Beauty Group in Taiwan
and China during the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is involved in
strategic management of the Group at Board level. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu has been
a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY
LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May 2001 and 11
July 2008 respectively. She is currently also a director of some of our PRC and
Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EENEAREEEBREE

VICE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. PATRICK THOMAS SIEWERT

Aged 59, is currently a managing director of the Carlyle Group based in Hong
Kong. Mr. SIEWERT has been working at Carlyle since April 2007. Mr. SIEWERT
currently sits on the board of directors of a variety of companies in which
funds of Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation, China Fishery
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore (stock
code: BOZ). Mr. SIEWERT also sits on the board of directors of Avery Dennison
Corporation, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock code:
AVY), Computime Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 00320) and Mondeléz International, Inc, a
company listed on the NASDAQ (stock code: MDLZ). Mr. SIEWERT has also been
the director of Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited since August 2008. Prior
to joining Carlyle, Mr. SIEWERT worked at The Coca-Cola Company from 2001
to 2007 and was group president and chief operating officer Asia, and was
previously president of Kodak Professional and senior vice president of Eastman
Kodak Company. Mr. SIEWERT received a Master of Science degree in service
management from Rochester Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science
degree in business administration from Elmhurst College. He was appointed as
the Group's Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009 and Vice Chairman
on 1 February 2010. He also serves as the Chairman of Executive Committee and
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. From August 2010 to 31 December 2012, Mr. SIEWERT was a Non-
Executive Director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (stock code: 00043). Mr. SIEWERT has
been a director of Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 30 April 2013. He
is currently a director of some of our PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries. He is also a
director of CA NB Limited and Starsign International Limited.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. NG SHIEU YEING CHRISTINA

Aged 42, is currently a director of the Carlyle Group based in Hong Kong. Ms.
NG has been working at Carlyle since 1998. At Carlyle, Ms. NG has overseen
investments in, among others, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co., Ltd,
Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited, China Pacific Insurance (Group)
Company Limited, kbro Co, Ltd. and the Company. Prior to joining Carlyle,
Ms. NG worked at Merill Lynch and Exor Asia, the direct investment arm of
the Agnelli Group of Italy. Ms. NG received a Bachelor of Science degree in
management science from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. She was
appointed as the Group’s Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009. She is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. She has been a director
of Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 4 February 2013. She is currently
also a director of some of our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and Taiwan

subsidiaries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. POON YEE MAN ALWIN

Aged 44, is currently a director of Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited based
in Hong Kong and is focused on buyout opportunities in Asia. He has been
working at Carlyle since 2007. Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. POON spent close to
ten years at Olympus Capital Holdings Asia, an Asia-based private equity fund,
where he was a managing director and a member of the investment committee.
Prior to that, Mr. POON was also a management consultant with Bain & Company
based in Hong Kong. Since August 2010 until 31 December 2012, Mr. POON
was an alternate director to Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT for his non-executive
directorship with CP. Pokphand Co. Ltd,, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 00043).
Mr. POON received his Master of Science in operations research and industrial
engineering from University of California, Berkeley and his Bachelor of Science in
computer science from Cornell University. He was appointed as the Group's Non-

Executive Director on 17 May 2012.
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EENSREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. GREGORY MICHAEL ZELUCK

Aged 53, is currently a managing director and co-head of Carlyle Management
Hong Kong Limited advising on Asian buyout opportunities. He advises on
the sourcing and execution of deals in Greater China (particularly Taiwan). He
is based in Hong Kong. Mr. ZELUCK joined Carlyle in 1998 and, since then,
has advised on several notable transactions including Taiwan Broadband
Communications Co.,, Ltd, Caribbean Group, Pacific China Holdings Limited, Ta
Chong Bank, Ltd, Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited and the merger of kbro
Co,, Ltd. As part of his advisory role, he currently sits on the board of directors of
several Carlyle portfolio companies, including but not limited to, ADT Caps Co,
Ltd, Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited, kbro Co, Ltd. and vice chairman
of Ta Chong Bank, Ltd, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 2847). From 30 March 2009 until 30 March 2015, Mr. ZELUCK was a director
of Hyundai Communications & Network Co. Limited, a company listed on the
Korea Exchange (Stock code: 126560). Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. ZELUCK worked
in Merrill Lynch's Asian high yield team and spent 13 years at Lehman Brothers’
corporate finance and merchant banking groups, approximately four of which
were spent in Asia. Mr. ZELUCK received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Princeton
University, graduating magna cum laude in East Asian studies. He was appointed
as the Non-Executive Director of the Company on 29 October 2014, and is also a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since then. Mr. ZELUCK is
currently a director of some of our Taiwan subsidiaries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER

Aged 73, had worked closely with some of the most prestigious names in the
business, including Cartier, Van Cleef & Arpels, Piaget, Vacheron Constantin, Alfred
Dunhill and Jaeger-LeCoultre, etc. He had also been the Managing Director of
Cartier France, the CEO of Piaget International, and the President of The Hong
Kong Watch Importers’ Association from 2004 to 2006. Mr. GOUTENMACHER was
also the former CEO of Richemont Asia Pacific, one of the world's leading luxury
groups and in 2006, retired from Richemont and established Gouten Consulting
Limited to help luxury brands with their marketing and strategic development
of their luxury brands in the challenging and rapidly emerging market of Asia-
Pacific. Mr. GOUTENMACHER is currently an independent non-executive director
of IT Limited (stock code: 00999) and Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (stock code:
00577), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is also a director of Gouten Consulting Limited, an advisor to several local
luxury groups, and sits on the board of directors of several non-listed companies.
He was appointed as the Group'’s Independent Non-Executive Director on 1
February 2010. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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EENSREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. SU-MEI THOMPSON

Aged 48, is currently the Chief Executive Officer of The Women'’s Foundation, a
leading Non-Government Organisation promoting the advancement of women
in Hong Kong. She was invited by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong to join the
Equal Opportunities Commission in 2013. Previously, she held senior regional
management positions at Walt Disney Television Asia-Pacific, the Financial Times
where she served as Managing Director for Asia and was a member of the FT's
Global Management Board, and Christie’s. She started her career as a corporate
finance lawyer at Linklaters and served in the firm's London, Paris and Hong
Kong offices. She had also held board positions with China Cablecom Holdings
Ltd. and The Business Standard. Ms. THOMPSON is a Director of Opera Hong
Kong and a Council Member of The Cheltenham Ladies College in the United
Kingdom. She was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Group on 1 February 2010. She is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. She obtained her Master of Business Administration (Dean’s
List) degree from IMD in Lausanne, Switzerland, a first-class Masters degree in
law from Oxford University, England and a BA degree in law from Cambridge
University, England and is a UK qualified solicitor.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 66, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National Chung-
Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries and
was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974 to 1979.
Mr. CHEN was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information Industry in
Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. CHEN is currently the Board Chairman of SINOCON
Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Secretary-general of Cross-
Strait CEO Summit, a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan and Teknowledge
Development Corporation in Taiwan, and the Board Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (Stock code: 5346), listed
on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also a director of HannStar Board
Corporation (stock code: 5469) and Asia Cement Corporation (stock code: 1102);
a managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (Stock code: 1326); an independent director of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (Stock code: 1314) and INVENTEC CORPORATION
(Stock code: 2356), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June
2011 until 10 June 2014, he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech.
Co,, Ltd. (Stock code: 3452), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was
appointed as the Group's Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February
2010. He is also the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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EENSREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG TZE-KAING

Aged 60, obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from University
of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, US.A. in 1982 and his PhD in Strategic
Management from National Chengchi University of Taiwan in 1987. He is
currently the Chairman of Yangtze Associates, the President of Huiyang Private
Equity Fund Co, Ltd, an independent director of DBS Bank (Taiwan) Ltd, and a
director of Financial Literacy & Education Association and Airiti Incorporation.
He is also the supervisor of ASUSTeK Computer Inc. (stock code: 2357); a director
of RITEK Corporation (stock code: 2349) and Chien Kuo Construction Co,, Ltd.
(stock code: 5515) and an independent director of ASROCK Incorporation (stock
code: 3515), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. YANG was also
the Deputy Minister of the Ministry of Finance of Taiwan, the Managing Director
and Acting Chairman of Bank of Taiwan, the President of China Development
Industrial Bank of Taiwan and an associate professor in National Chengchi
University and National Chiao Tung University. He was appointed as the
Group's Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2010. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. CHANG KAREN YI FEN

Aged 51, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group effective
from 2 January 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. CHANG worked for Pou
Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 03813), from 2007 to April 2012, of which she had served as the
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director from 2007 to 2009 and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director from 2009 to April 2012. Ms. CHANG
had many years of financial management and investment banking experiences
gained from working with Credit Suisse, Merrill Lynch, Jardine Fleming in
Shanghai, China and Hong Kong and KPMG in Washington D.C. and Los Angeles
in the United States. She had also worked for Semiconductor Manufacturer
International Corporation from 2003 to 2004 as Assistant Vice President of
Finance. She currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Sun
Art Retail Group Limited which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 06808). Ms. CHANG graduated with a Bachelor degree in Arts in
English Literature from Fu-Jen Catholic University in Taiwan in 1986 and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the George Washington University in
Washington D.C. in the United States in 1998.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

FINANCE VICE PRESIDENT:

MS. CHEN, LI-TING

Aged 45, joined the Group as the Finance Vice President in June 2013 and is
in full charge of finance strategy. Ms. CHEN graduated from Public Finance
Department of National Chung Hsin University. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. CHEN worked as finance chief for various well-known companies, such
as wwwins Isobar, the advertising agency under Aegis group, Chrysler Group
Taiwan Sales Limited, and etc. Ms. CHEN has abundant financial management

experience.

OPERATION VICE PRESIDENT:

MR. LIAO QINGYI

Aged 53, joined the Group as the Operation Vice President in May 2014 and is
in full charge of operational management. Mr. LIAO holds a Bachelor degree
in Finance from the Central Missouri State University. He joined Pou Chen
Corporation ("PCC") in February 1995 and had served in branches of PCC in
Vietnam, Guangdong, Kunshan, Yangzhou and Shanghai, in charge of finance
operations. He served as the chief financial officer of Pou Sheng International
(Holdings) Limited, listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 03813).
Mr. LIAO has abundant operational management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Aged 51, is the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of Rule
8.17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Ms. HO is a director of Corporate Services
Division of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. HO has over 20 years of experience in the
company secretarial area. She is currently the joint company secretary of China
Molybdenum Co,, Ltd, China Polymetallic Mining Limited and China Rundong
Auto Group Limited and the company secretary of Yashili International Holdings
Ltd, Sun Art Retail Group Limited and Goodbaby International Holdings Limited,
all are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products and health supplements and make-up
products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services and skin
care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 78.

An interim dividend of HKS$0.021 per share amounting to approximately
HKS$42,044,120 was paid to the shareholders during the year. At the Board
meeting held on 30 March 2015, the Directors recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK$0.03188 per share to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on 5 June 2015, amounting
to approximately HK$63,826,978. The proposed final dividend is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 22 May 2015. Details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:

Directors’'Report
EEEWESE

TENERRECTE
AARR T A EEHRRR B TE -

Book Closure Period Purpose Final Lodging Date
PR R B LM =)z REEZAH
20 May 2015 to 22 May 2015 To determine the identity of members who are entitled 19 May 2015
to attend and vote at the 2015 Annual General Meeting
—=-—RFEA—18 ARTEENE T EEERIAFAR —ZE—AFHAATNA
E_Z-hAFAA=-+=H WHE FREZRR SR
4 June 2015 to 5 June 2015 To determine the identity of members who are 3 June 2015
entitled to the final dividend
—E-hFRAMEA RIEETT A ERERRPRE ZRR S ) —E-hFRA=H

E-F—AFAAA

During and including the book closure periods described in the table above, no
transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2015 Annual General Meeting
or to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the final lodging dates mentioned in the

table above.
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EEEREE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total
turnover and purchases for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2014 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, amounted to
HK$278,000.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan (resigned on 29 October 2014)

Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (appointed on 29 October 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK will
retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG
Tze-Kaing shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Hong Kong Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board Meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.
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Directors’Report
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice Chairmen of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairperson and Vice Chairmen

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board)
M. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Vice Chairman of the Board)

Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Chairperson)
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Members of Executive Committee:

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Chairman)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin (ceased to be a member on 29 October 2014)

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (appointed on 29 October 2014)

Members of Nomination Committee:

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Chairman)
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD

COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
executive committee and the nomination committee of the Company as wellas &8

@Z,ﬂ A BARARREREREIERE

the Chairperson and Vice Chairmen of the Company as of date of this report are

set out below:

EB

FE -

TREINEEARR

g ¥FEEe
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£

BXERESZES

REZETERS

e

(%)

RRAEZ

CHITEEENREEE

Board Committees

ExZBw
Audit  Remuneration Executive  Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors o BRZBE FMEZEe WTZEE REZEE
Executive Directors YITES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) BEREEL - = M M
(EZEXR)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board) ~ ZXRREE A4 - = = =
(ZEZgRIER)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng EREHIE T - M - =
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT HE#ERR L = M € M
(Vice Chairman of the Board) (BEE2REF)
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina REBL T M - - -
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin AL - - - -
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu FABiEL M = M -
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK BETFRLE = = M =
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHTES
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHERE 4= M M M M
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON BE&EjEL L M C - M
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRImbE S A C M - M
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BTIRE M M M C
Notes: BT -
C Chairman/Chairperson of Board committees C EEZBEXR
M Member of Board committees M EEZBEKE
BAZEYREERAT ZT—NFFHR 6]
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$183,928,000 which represents the share premium and retained profits of the
Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors' service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu expired
on 31 December 2014 and were renewed with the same terms for another
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 with an initial annual
remuneration of HK$1,000,000, nominal HKS1, HKS$1,250,000 and HKS$1,250,000
respectively. The Directors' service contracts entered into between the Company
and each of the independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG
Tze-Kaing were renewed with the same terms for another three years from 1
February 2013 to 31 January 2016.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other
party one to three calendar months' notice in writing.

There was no service contract entered into between the Company and each of
M. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan (resigned on 29 October
2014), Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin and Mr. Gregory
Michael ZELUCK (appointed on 29 October 2014).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The initial annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are summarised as follows:

Directors’'Report
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BEERESY
BE-—T-—mME+-—A=T—BILEE  BiE
IR A NE 2 EFRaT -

Annual

Director fee

Annual increment

(HK dollars)  on Director fee Discretionary
Directortype FEHEZHRE FHES bonus
Name of Director e 2l (Brm) FEIEE ETEAT
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu BEEEEL ED 1,000,000  Note @FfE@  Note (b)HiFE(b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FHERE ED 1 Note (@@  Note (B)FfFE(b)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BEaiet FD 1250000 Note (a)ffiF@  Note (b)HizE(b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BAEELT NED 1,250,000 Note @FizE@  Note (D)MiFEDb)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHERE 4= INED 240000 N/ATNEFA N/A3E
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON A=+ INED 240,000  N/ATNEF N/A 3
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRImIE S & INED 240000 N/ATNEA N/ATE R
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BFILEAE INED 240000 N/ATNEA N/ATE R
Total “ast 4,460,001
ED: Executive Director ED: $IfTES

NED: Non-Executive Director

INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

Notes:

(a The annual increment of the Directors' fee for Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

(b) Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors may receive a bonus approved
by and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that

financial year of the Group.

NED : JEBTTES
INED : BN FEHITES

fi i -

@ BITESRIPTESCEFTHCTTIERE
TEHRBE—F2FEHWE10% -

) HTEERIRTESTUNE=TE IR
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

No Director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:—

BEEREEN @)
REZE_Z—=FK - FT—NF+_A=+—
BIHER - AR R S
B4 -

B EXIWEEESN - AEEY EBAEEF] A
AR —FARMNHE (—BREEFERI)
FTURIEZREMRBEL -

BREEASNHMH
HE_ZT—NF+_A=+—HLEEE  a&
EEABRGFMEES DOFINEIIMAT

Remuneration bands = Number of members of senior management

ERERABAH
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,00178 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 2
Total wmEt 2

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors, the chief executives and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the "Model Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, were as follows:
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EEEWESE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN EERFEITHRAEREZROE
SHARES (Continued) = ()
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAABRG REERSG ZFE
Ordinary shares ZRER
% of the
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares AR AF]
s RERE TERHEE COBTRAESL
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu®” Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
EREETO g INSIE: £
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta® Interest of spouse 1,314,030,000 65.63%
FHHESLAD [iREr
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
FREMIFELO HEE R
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
B AIELO HEE RS
Options R
% of the
Number of shares/ issued share capital
underlying shares held of the Company
Chief Executive Officer Nature of interest FigRkn HARRTA
BEHTE EEME HERNEE BEBTREAESL
Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen Beneficial owner 38,039,918 1.90%
SRIBS L+ ERBEAA
BAZEYREERAR ZT—NFFHR 65
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

m Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 50% of Standard Cosmos Limited, Standard Cosmos Limited is
therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the
SFO. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company owned by Standard Cosmos
Limited are attributable to Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu.

) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

3) Each of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is taken to be interested in the
1,314,030,000 shares of the Company which are indirectly owned by Starsign
International Limited pursuant to Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO by virtue of Dr.
SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu being parties to a shareholders’ agreement
dated 15 October 2009 which imposes obligations or restrictions on the parties
thereto with respect to their use, retention or disposal of their interests in shares of
the Company.

Details of the interests of Directors and chief executives in the derivatives
interests in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 are disclosed
in the Share Options which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executives nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2014.
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SHARE OPTIONS IR e
The Company A E]
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the N2 AIFRRAEET &) 2 B E N 4R 6 M 15 R &=
consolidated financial statements. FF25 °

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options during 7% 3 #& 2" 2 B :RIIE R F A 2 E BB
the year:

Lapsed/ QOutstanding
Qutstanding forfeited at 31122014
at1.1.2014 Granted during the Canceled  R=F—-TUE
Vesting Evercise bedse  RZT—MF during the year during the +-4
Opﬁon type Dateofgrant  period period price -A-H yar  ERKH/ year =1-H
RIRIERR FHRH GBS e T HATTEE Eni -G ERtH HAITE
2013 Option (CEQ) 10 May 2013 4years 10 May 2022 to HKS0.99 38039918 S - - 38039918
9 May 2023
“TCERE —F= k3 S S 099787
(BRHTE) A+A BATRE
I
nANA
2013 Option 19 April 2013 4years 19 April 2022 to HK3099 23524682 - (9,009454) - 14515228
(Other employees) 18 April 2023
“ToFRRE T mF e Sl = 099787
(Hibfes) mAthA MAthEZ
mA+AR
May 2014 Option 6 May 2014 4years 6May 20310 HK3099 - 34536239 (13013655) - 21522584
(Employee and 5 May 2024
senior management)
“T-MERARRE —T-mF RmF “BCCF 09987
(EERER hR~R hRAARE
BEAR) 13
hATA
December 2014 Option 2 December 2014 4 years 2 December 2023 HKS0.99 - 7607983 - - 7607983
(Employee and to 1 December 2024
senior management)
“TMETCA ZB-mE mE % cF 09987
AME (EERER  +=A=R t-AZR%
EEAB) e 13
t-A-B
Total
st 61,564,600 414400 (22023,109) - 81685713
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

2013 Options

The 2013 options (2013 Options”) were granted in accordance with the
announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2013

At the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2013, options to subscribe
38,039,918 ordinary shares of the Company were granted to Ms. CHANG Karen Vi
Fen, Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The offer letters to other employees
relating to the 2013 Options were issued on 19 April 2013

2014 Options

The May 2014 options (“May 2014 Options”) and the December 2014 options
("December 2014 Options’, together with the May 2014 Options, collectively
“2014 Options”) were granted in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 4 April 2014 and 2 December 2014, respectively. The respective
offer letters relating to the May 2014 Options and the December 2014 Options
had been issued to the employees and senior management of the Group.

Each of the 2013 Options and 2014 Options (collectively “the Options”) will vest
over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the publication of the audited
(in the case of 2013
Options), year 2015 (in the case of May 2014 Options) and year 2016 (in the case

financial results of the Group for the financial year 2014

of December 2014 Options) (respectively referred to as the “First Year’, as the case
may be) respectively, at the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the First Year and
up to a maximum of 20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the
achievement of the performance targets for each financial year as determined by
the Board at its sole discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining as an Eligible
Person (as defined in the share option scheme of the Company) at the time of
each vesting of the Options.

In the case that a change in control occurs prior to the vesting of all the Options,
the Board shall have full discretions on the vesting and exercise of such unvested
Options.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
The Option holder may exercise all vested Options beginning from:

a) the ninth anniversary of the date of grant of the Options; and
b)  the occurrence of a change in control of the Company,

whichever is earlier, until the expiry of ten years from the date of grant of the
Options.

The Options shall only become exercisable after vesting.

Any failure to exercise any vested Options prior to the expiry of ten years from
the date of grant of the Options shall be deemed to be a waiver of the right to
exercise such Options and such Options shall not be capable of being exercised
after expiry of the ten-year period.

The Company’s right to buy back the Options or the Option shares
Upon the occurrence of a change in control of the Company, the Company may,
in Its absolute discretion, purchase any unexercised Options or any Option shares
at such time held by the Option holders and the Option holders shall sell to the
Company such unexercised Options or Option Shares, at the following price:

- in the case of unexercised Options, the price offered by the offeror in the
general offer minus the subscription price of the Options; and

- In the case of Option shares, the price offered by the offeror in the general
offer.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Shares
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2014.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the following
shareholders other than the Directors of the Company had notified the
Company of their relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EFERR

R-Z-M&E+=A=+—8  BARARE

BHRAEGHEBREEZEERTER

AR U TRE (ARAEERN) EAE
NABERAARERTRATEEBBE

S o

B

RAEXTRD REBRRD 2F-
AR EREEI0EB T ZEER

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of
ordinary shares

Percentage
of the Issued
share capital

beneficially held of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest EwEE AR RIERT
TERRME BB fieE  #ERtE ERRE A BRAB DL
Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000(L) 41.88%
ERBEEA
Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEEA
Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEAA
Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
XEH AR
Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
XEH AR
CA NB Limited 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
XPEH AR
Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P. 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
XPEH AR
Keywise Capital Management Beneficial owner 112,180,000(L) 5.60%
(HK) Limited ESBEAA
SRR EER (H8) ARAA
Orchid Asia V, L.P. 4 Beneficial owner 142,750,650(L) 7.13%
EnEAA
OAV Holdings LP. 4 Interest of controlled companies 142,750,650(L) 7.13%

RSN EER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)
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FTERRK (&)
REDATRGBREBREZFE ()
AATEREE 0BT LER (F)

Percentage
Number of of the Issued
ordinary shares share capital

beneficially held of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest E=fFE AR RBERT

TERREE S RE sy EstE EEREE BRAB DL

Orchid Asia V GP, Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 142,750,650(L) 7.13%
gl NI s

Orchid Asia V Group Management, 4 Interest of controlled companies 142,750,650(L) 7.13%
Limited TSI A AR

Orchid Asia V Group Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 142,750,650(L) 7.13%
SR VNS

Areo Holdings Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
SEH AR

LI Gabriel 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
FHEIE g il NI £

LAM Lai Ming 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
HRERR g ezl NI e

(L): Long position

Notes:

M

Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly owns 50% of Starsign International Limited.
As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in which Starsign International
Limited is interested are attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, LP. is the sole shareholder of CA North Beach Limited, which,
in turn, is the sole shareholder of CA NB Limited. CA NB Limited directly owns 50%
of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company
in which Starsign International Limited is interested are attributable to CA NB
Limited, CA North Beach Limited and Carlyle Asia Partners IIl, L.P.

(1) Starsign International Limited&Standard
Cosmos Limitedz M — f% %+ iMStandard
Cosmos Limited &Efficient Market Investments
Limited * Adventa Group Limited&Fortune
Bright Group LimitedZ ME— &3 - E It © A
Efficient Market Investments Limited * Adventa
Group Limited }2Fortune Bright Group Limited
HFEFHFAE 21,311,690,0008% 4 2 7] B 15 LA & B
Standard Cosmos Limited B ##A 2 2,340,000
AN B D (& F£1,314,030,00088 48 2 & A%
%) AIER M Standard Cosmos Limited & Starsign
International Limited °

(2)  Next Focus Holdings LimitedE % # /& Starsign
International Limited 50%#&zx + Bt » Starsign
International Limited 8 # % 2 1,314,030,0004%
N A% 5 AT B A Next Focus Holdings Limited ©

3) Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P./ACA North Beach
Limited, 2 ME—A%E - ifCA North Beach Limited
/CA NB Limited,Z M — A% 3R ° CA NB Limited
H ¥ ¥ B Starsign International Limited 5094
#5 » AL - Starsign International Limited & 4
% 2 1,314,030,00008 78 22 & I% 19 7] B85 FACA NB
Limited ~ CA North Beach Limited & Carlyle Asia
Partners Ill, L.P. ©

BAZEYRIBRERART —T-—OFFH 7
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

@

Areo Holdings Limited is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V Co-Investment,
Limited and Orchid Asia V Group Limited. Orchid Asia V Group Limited is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V Group Management, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V GP, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of
OAV Holdings L.P, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V, LP. Orchid
Asia V, LP. and Orchid Asia V Co-Investment, Limited directly held 142,750,650
(approximately 7.13%) and 1,324,350 (approximately 0.07%) of the shares of the
Company, respectively. Areo Holdings Limited is beneficially owned by LI Gabriel
and LAM Lai Ming. LAM Lai Ming is the spouse of LI Gabriel.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of

any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

0]

72

On 29 October 2014, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered
into between B AE £ EHX I B R A & (Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Company Limited) (“Taiwan NB”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, an executive
Director, as landlord in relation to the lease of certain premises in Taipei,
Taiwan which has been used as the headquarters and training and spa
centre of the Group in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of 26 calendar months
from 1 November 2014 to 31 December 2016, with monthly rental of
TW$2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$574,859.5) to extend the
term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject matter; and
(b) the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between Taiwan
NB as tenant and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an executive Director, as landlord
in relation to the lease of certain premises in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan
which has been used as a spa centre of the Group, in Taipei, Taiwan, for
a period of two years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016 with a
monthly rental of TW$75,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,162) to
extend the term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject
matter.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2014

FERR (&)
RAEDATRORAEERGZFE (8)

AATEREEIBTZEEBR (&)

(4) Areo Holdings Limited&Orchid Asia V Co-
Investment, Limited & Orchid Asia V Group
LimitedZ M — A% 2 ° Orchid Asia V Group
Limited&Orchid Asia V Group Management,
Limited,Z M — A% 3 + MOrchid Asia V Group
Management, Limited/&Orchid Asia V GP,
LimitedZ Mt — A& 38 ifOrchid Asia V GP,
Limited Z0AV Holdings L.P.Z Mf — X 3+ i
OAV Holdings LP.&Orchid Asia V, LP.ZME—
A& ° Orchid Asia V, LP.&Orchid Asia V Co-
Investment, Limited% Bl B % 5 5 142,750,650
A& (497.13%) K.1,324,3500% (#90.07%) AN T
%1% o Areo Holdings Limited B2 ELE 2 MR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

i) (Continued)
Details of the above-mentioned tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2012 and 29 October
2014. Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate
used in the above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$3.914.

(i)  On 2 December 2014, the Consultancy Service Agreement was
entered into between the Company and CA NB Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, in relation to the retention of CA NB
Limited for the provision of certain consultancy services for a period of
36 calendar months from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 for a fee
of HK$368,000 per calendar month to extend the term of the previous
Consultancy Service Agreement of the same subject matter. Details of
the above-mentioned Consultancy Service Agreements were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 14 December 2011 and 2
December 2014.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions
of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
Particulars of the transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties
and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2014 or at any time during such year; and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorised by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

TSAIl Yen-Yu
Chairperson
Hong Kong
30 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEHRES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 171, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the Group’s state of affairs as at 31 December 2014, and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ceBEakEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HEZZ-—MF+-_A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FE T FAT
Revenue A 5 505,761 439421
Cost of sales HEKA (116,981) (106,321)
Gross profit EF 388,780 333,100
Other income EAhlzs 7 18,449 19,930
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER (172,529) (175,605)
Administrative expenses TR (89,820) (91,147)
Other expenses Hibfx (28,606) (3,232)
Profit before tax BRI A 116,274 83,052
Income tax expense FrisfiAx 8 (44,794) (24,593)
Profit for the year REZ A 9 71,480 58,459
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Eﬂﬁé@'&ﬁ (Fx%):
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: SWEFOEIERR
ZEE-
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan EEE?E?‘JLW%EJ%‘J 23 (488) (3,384)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to e B BB R R
profit or loss: ZIE B
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEELVIEN =5 (11,761) 9,774
Total comprehensive income for the year ARFEEEHERERERE 59,231 64,849
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT REIERER
(B8)
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE 2SN 71,480 58,269
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A = 190
71,480 58,459
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: LA~ A LS 2 B S
FEEE
Owners of the Company AN/NCIEZZ =N 59,231 64,662
Non-controlling interests SEFER R = - 187
59,231 64,849
Earnings per share BRA7 12
Basic and diluted ARG #E HK3.6 cents HK2.9 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E BRI R AR

At 31 December 2014

RZE—WFE+=—HA=+—8”
2014 2013
—ZE—F —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B THET TET

Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties EE 14 5,915 5963
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 15 223,708 257218
Prepaid lease payments B AT ER 16 9,102 9,453
Goodwill [HES 17 28,272 28,375
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use right  FE LIt FAEE 1R S 12,637 12,692
Deferred tax assets IEIEFATAE B 26 2,009 974
281,643 314,675

Current assets E EE
Inventories FE 18 45,036 47,047
Trade and other receivables E”%&H1ﬁfuﬁlﬁﬁq/\ 19 67,458 112,624
Prepaid lease payments BRI HHEER 16 310 312
Bank balances and cash RITEEAIRS 20 583,283 507,409
696,087 667,392
Current liabilities RBERE

Trade and other payables B 5 REAM BRI 21 153,314 154,510
Deferred income REW 2 7,577 7,779
Taxation payable FERBITE 30,311 18,544
191,202 180,833
Net current assets REEERE 504,885 486,559
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBERE 786,528 801,234

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Retirement benefit obligations RINENAE 23 12,622 12,976
773,906 788,258

Capital and reserves BRARFHE
Share capital A& 24 200,210 200,210
Reserves HE 573,696 588,048
Total equity R 773,906 788,258

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 171 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
FEwEL
DIRECTOR
EBEFE

F78EEF 171 HWER

EMBEHREN_—_T—H

F=A=+H 5%5%2%&%%%%@‘ © WA

A THRERE

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

MEAERELE
DIRECTOR

EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nJT§

= N\ 7/ -‘-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE—Z—

mME+—A=1t—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRFE AL
Share Non-
Share  Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained controlling
capital  surplus  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings  Sub-fotal interests Total
Ra  ExEH ROEE EREE ENRE IWERE REEN Nt FERER h
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKY'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén fEx TR TEx TER TEr TEx TExr  TEn  TER
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZF-=E-A-An% 200210 42554 4016 163490 129012 213 169,778 748183 (187) 747.9%
Profifor the year RERET - - - - - - %% 59 190 58459
Other comprehensive income AEERMEANS
(expense) for the year (#%) - - - - 9777 - BB 63 B 630
Total comprehensive income TERRENGEE
forthe year = = = = 9777 = 54885 04662 187 64849
Recogition of equity-settled IR EREERD
share based payment BES - - - - - 121 - bl - ]
Cancellation of unvested share options s {TIEARRIE = = = = = 919 = 919 = 919
Transfer upon cancelation of R Es
share options - - - - - (2483) 2483 - - -
Dividends recognized as EREDE RS
distribution (note 13) (Ktt13) - - - - - N v- 77 ATl - (e
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=F
T-A=t-B%E W20 454 4016 16340 138789 680 20519 788258 - 788258
Profit for the year RERAT - - - - = - TIA0 71480 - T4
Other comprehensive expense REERMZERY
forthe year = = = = (11,761) = (488) (12,249 = (12,249
Total comprehensive (expense) AEERME (F%) b&
income for the year k| - - - - (11,761) - 70992 59231 - 59231
Recognition of equity-settied AR ERES RN
shae based payment ES - - - - - 109 - 1095 - 109
Dividends recognized as BRADEZRE
distibution (note 13) (H13) - - - - - - (4678 (4679 - (e
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-MF
T-A=T-B%E W20 454 406 16340 12708 175 19988 7B3Y6 - TB3Y6
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under PRC generally accepted accounting principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with the Article
of Association and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net profit under
PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

meERB B
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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xR
BARBECHREREE_SE_FEEE
ERFSERE A REAEFEL 2 -

Bt m(E
REFSHBARE - ROEEETERMRE
HDEBREBMENIETELDEAA -

EE

RiphEARLME ([HE]) BREMIRR
Bl FEINEREQFASREFEGR
I (THEAREREAN) BT ZBR B A
(THFEARSFTRAATAN]) ETEDL
BRE-REBESMNEEERES - DIKZ
FRBAREBARMEMERMA 2R EHET
VREFSTFIAE - RfPBEQRAR/H
ARG RUBBTANETAD LEREETE
BMBAEE  BEEAEERLEEHREINE

BN AN50% 511 o

BIESEERRG - 6EARBFAERE
EEFWRINONEREZTHE  EEETH
HEBREDBEERASESL -

bt S L fE MRS T RE AN &S L A
AER

ESHET LML MRR B TERIERS R
FAE -
EAZAYRBERAT —B-MEER g



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-_r\/\IEr M7 /)II_, %E

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HEZZ-—MF+-_A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—F-DIF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES rEEY
Profit before tax FRFH AR ) 116,274 83,052
Adjustments for: RN &IE
Interest income ) B = (13,508) (9337)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEREBITE 38,544 39,226
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BMEMEEZ
plant and equipment (F18) &8 (231) 1,710
Release of prepaid lease payments B E R+ HEER 311 312
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEME RN TFELM (278) (196)
Impairment of other receivables HAbEURBRFURE 12,511 =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% -~ BB RSB RE 9,895 =
Allowance for obsolete inventories PREGFERG 5,274 6,495
Expense of share based payment expense AN ENE N 1,095 1,040
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 R BAE 930 446
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital && & & ZE)RI 2 K2R SRE 170,817 122,748
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (i“jjl]) NN (3,263) 13,885
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables 5 R EMEAER CRd) 180 (1,196) 39,183
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables = &ﬁﬁﬂfﬂ&ﬁémﬂ’“ (3ZHn) 31,725 (57,999)
(Decrease) increase in deferred income EEWES CRid) 120 (202) 1,852
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations RNEHEE OBid) 1Ean (842) (79
Cash generated from operations AR 2R E 197,039 119,590
Income taxes paid [RENIFIECT R (31,936) (11,301)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRAESREFRE 165,103 108,289
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HIHFE

2014 2013
—2-—mFE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETESH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BERXK (18,525) (22,570)
Interest received 2 F B 13,508 9,337
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE¥ - ME & REMS A 330 100
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBFTARSFER (4,687) (13,133)
NET CASH USED IN A FINANCING ACTIVITY MEITEMARESTHE
Dividends paid 2R R (74,678) (25,627)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERESESEWIEM 85,738 69,529
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BzERERESEEY 507,409 432,441
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES EREE o HE (9,864) 5439
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT+ZA=+—HZEER
31 DECEMBER HE&EEY
represented by bank balances and cash FBIRTTEFENIR S 583,283 507,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB WmARME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE—Z—

84

mME+—A=1t—HILFE

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate holding company are
Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited, respectively,
and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range of products
including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HKS), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for the first time
in the current year:
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
“Investment entities”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 “Investment entities” for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and require a
reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not
to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate financial
statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or
both; and

measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its

investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based on the
criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January 2014), the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or the amounts

recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RARM R

iy =1

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities” for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realization and settlement!

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group does
not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset,
the application of the amendments has had no impact on the disclosures
or on the amounts recognized in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36 “Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets” for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements applicable to when the recoverable amount of an
asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal. These new
disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used which are in line with the disclosure required by HKFRS
13 “Fair value measurements’”

The application of these amendments has had no material impact on the
disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 “Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 “Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting” for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change to the fair
value of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising from
the novation should be included in the assessment and measurement of
hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group does
not have any derivatives that are subject to novation, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 “Levies”

The Group has applied HK(FRIC) — INT 21 “Levies” for the first time in
the current year. HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 addresses the issue as to when
to recognize a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government. The
Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that
gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance on
how different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in particular, it
clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the going concern basis
of financial statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a future
period.

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 has been applied retrospectively. The application of this
Interpretation has had no material impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 “Levies” (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with

customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods

and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants®
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions*

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial
statements®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between

and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or

joint venture®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
earlier application permitted.

January 2018, with

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
earlier application permitted.

1 January 2017, with
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
earlier application permitted.

1 January 2016, with

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’ ("FVTOCI") measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognized in profit or l0ss.
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2. Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities' credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognized.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments
that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship'
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9in
the future may have a material impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in credit risk of financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
disclosed in note 32.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’, HKAS 11
“Construction contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i. e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 27 “Equity method in separate
financial statements”

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements

At cost

In accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (or HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” for entities
that have not yet adopted HKFRS 9), or

Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28 “Investments in
associates and joint ventures”
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 “Equity method in separate
financial statements” (Continued)
The accounting option must be applied by category of investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be an
investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall account for
the change from the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are consequential
amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential conflict with HKFRS 10
“Consolidated financial statements” and to HKFRS 1 “First-time adoption of
Hong Kong financial reporting standards”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (i) add definitions for ‘performance
condition” and ‘service condition’ which were previously included within
the definition of 'vesting condition. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are
effective for share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair value at
each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent consideration
is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39
or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognized in profit and
loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’
assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets

are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short- term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As the amendments
do not contain any effective date, they are considered to be immediately
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity providing
key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a related party
of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose
as related party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or
payable to the management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle” include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply to
the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9,
even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 are not
mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must determine
whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments will have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

The “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle” include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in HKFRS 5
for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) from held
for sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or when
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify
whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in relation to transferred
assets and clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the
amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosure — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities” issued in December 2011 and effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly required for all
interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to be included in
condensed interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 “Interim
financial reporting’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate
bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment benefits
should be issued in the same currency as the benefits to be paid. These
amendments would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in
the financial statements in which the amendments are first applied. Any
initial adjustment arising should be recognized in retained earnings at the
beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating to
information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within the
interim financial report but outside the interim financial statements. The
amendments require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the other part of
the interim financial report that is available to users on the same terms

and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these will have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial

statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including

voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HIFE

FESHBE @)
BAMBREBEARARTAAFL
HBE (EMBAR) 2 HEHE - &
ARETHIEEBBRZS) -

BRENBRIEREHR

ARSI ARZFARNSEREHR
LEMESZFBE®R: &

BESVERMEE N A B

B RIS R L5 = TR
B ERSEEHED  AARTHE
WP AR DY RE N R R -

EAKEEREHREG IR ZHNR
RIE BRRERUNGEHEBENES
HEREREHRNBELY  A5EE
ENBREREHR - A RREES
RAGTEERNEEREHR  ~5HE
ZRAARBNEENMER - 81

AEEFANRRERELMRE
ELES PN PN N AN

AEE - EMEREENFAARHE
TR AR EERORKE

eE A R BEFATEERRERN :

EARENEEMERRANEE
BRIERB2ETRENREKE &
FRBENEEREHRNERE
B BRENAAERRASHIRER
= o

BAXEYRIRERART —T-—NFFH 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognized
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebate and
other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognized when services are provided. Payments
that are related to services not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is
described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than freehold land and properties under construction as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment properties and
are measured using the fair value model. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognized.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise except for:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies
below); and

exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange

differences arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the
Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the PRC municipal
government retirement scheme, are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well
as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past

service Costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 25.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognized
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognized in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognized in the share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary

difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognized to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would

be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods. (see accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entity are recognized at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognize, and the part it no longer recognizes on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and
the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwiill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$28,272,000 (2013: HK$28,375,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 17.

Impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (ie. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$50,802,000 (2013: HK$83,680,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$2,460,000 (2013: HK$1,536,000).

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production and trading. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices,
sales after year end and current market conditions. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$45,036,000 (2013:
HK$47,047,000) net of allowance for inventory of HKS$5,274,000 (2013:
HK$6,495,000) was recognized.
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Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i) goods
sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of sales returns
and allowances and (i) service income from provision of skin treatments,

beauty and SPA services for the year, and is analysed as follows:

LN
WAEAEREBTIERZEREE
WHERE : \AKEE TIIBEFP ZEM
(THIBREERE RITNED) ¢ Rl
HILEEE - XT RKERS 2 R
A B

2014 2013

—2-mFE T =F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F#ExT FHET

Sales of goods EmiE 498,580 434,220
Service income BRASUA 7,181 5,201
505,761 439421

See note 6 for an analysis of revenue by major products and services.

Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the segment and
to assess its performance. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company
reviews internal reports which focus on geographical segments by
location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS

8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3 Others (Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

Segment Information (Continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2014

DEBER (@)

on I ONSE T |
TXARERZ WA REERT
EEDEIEL 2 DT o

&

Ed

R K

BE-_Z—NE+-A=+—HLEE

PRC Taiwan Others Total
FR B K B =) ] Hith Wz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
Revenue REINERE P Z A 420,337 80,639 4,785 505,761
Segment profit (loss) HELRET (EE) 105,450 19,992 (204) 125,238
Expense of share based payment BEAD T ER ST (1,095)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBE AR H (21,547)
Unallocated income KoM= 13,678
Profit before tax BT BT T 116,274
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HILHFE
PRC Taiwan Others Total
B K RE = Efib 1aEE
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT BT FA&T THT
Revenue REIMNBER Z WA 359473 74,718 5,230 439,421
Segment profit (loss) DR | 83,804 11,590 592 95,986
Expense of share based payment READ T ER ST (1,040)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEE AR H (21,231)
Unallocated income Foiedes 9,337
Profit before tax AR A 83,052
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-T N+ -A=1T—"HLFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEHBMARESE (B)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the KEDER 2 SRR RT3 AR
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) EIBEAER - 23EF (B1E) A%
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without DEBREETS 2 m A (FTEL ZEE) -
allocation of equity-settled share based payments, central administration ERWRDERAREREZRG
costs, directors’ salaries and interest income. This is the measure reported FRITHER - EFFHMRFAEWA -
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource TR T EL B RS B R R IR AT M m)
allocation and performance assessment. FEEEARAERRE 2 BLE o
Other segment information Hitt BER
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FRE R pE =) Hit oy b
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FHET FET
2014 —E-—mE
Amounts included in the measure of 5 & MBS A
segment profit (10ss): TFIEREE
Depreciation of property, plantand 473 - & K&
equipment e 31,081 7,414 49 38,544
Release of prepaid lease payments Bo g AL ihfAER 311 - - 311
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  ME K&K
plant and equipment 2 B8 (F)8) 75 (324) 18 (231)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for ~ [REFEEE
obsolete inventories (BstE#sm)) 5,194 181 (101) 5,274
Allowance (reversal of allowance) on & 5 fE UL BR FNFEEE
trade receivables (BERm) 988 (58) - 930
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB MRS
equipment VEREN 9,895 - - 9,895
Impairment of other receivables H b W AR RORE 9,333 - 3,178 12,511
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Other segment information (Continued) Hibp&E R (48)
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
B A B A Hith  4RE4%E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

TR TR TET TR

2013
Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit (loss):
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Allowance for obsolete inventories
Allowance (reversal of allowance)
on trade receivable

—T-=F
DER A B IEET A
TFIFEE
M - BEREE
e 31,685 7,466 75 39,226
el 8 A &R 312 = = 312
HEME - HE KK
2 E1E (FUR) 1,736 (26) = 1,710
REFERE 5,900 563 32 6,495
B 5 AR
(B REE) 1458 (46) = 1412

BAXEYRIRERART —T-OFFH 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT—MF+-_A=+—RHLFE

6. Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range
of products including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products,
health supplements and mark-up products and (b) provision of skin
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty
training. The analysis of the Group's revenue by type of business for the
year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets presented based on the geographical

DEEE (&)
1 125,35 36}

FEETBRFQRERHEEERS - X
REM BTEEM RERMMMEAR
EXASKERORENEERE X7
R 7R B BR TS A Je UL i o 3 IR ) Al 75 I 52
B - AEBEFARRAIZEBERIE

H 2 DI BB RES

AEBEZIERBDEEREEMEHRSE

location of the assets as detailed below: FEAT -

2014 2013
—F-mFE —FT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
The PRC AR B K e 232,478 256,568
Taiwan = 49,068 57344
Others Hith 97 763
281,643 314,675

Information about major customers FEEFER

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed

10% or more to the Group's revenue for both 2014 and 2013.
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

Other Income 7. Hitlz=
2014 2013
et k2 —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Interest on bank deposits RITIF RS 13,508 9,337
Rental income from investment properties BEYE 2 B WER 146 150
Rental income from other properties and =ik E Y & i
equipment W 2,152 3,282
Financial refunds (Note) BT R R (BI5E) 2,134 6,965
Increase in fair value of investment properties &Y E N F(EE N 278 196
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HER&E 2 FE
equipment 231 =
18,449 19,930

Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in
which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will
receive financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government
grants by way of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However,
the refunds are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these
subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the
future.

=T
p=1l2
P

o AREE THBERENBRABGERER
102 BB ARPIFRER N 2 BB ) - B
AR B A B B 1 R s B A R IR
EBPTETTER - MBS RBF &
NEEWMBER - BRRRIIIEEAM
BRSPS o A ARARER
RESFETRE - B REEHEE B RN
BRARANARETHEATEREAL
AEA TR

BAXEYRIRERAT —T-HFFH 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT—MF+-_A=+—RHLFE

8. Income Tax Expense 8. FBHMAX
2014 2013
—E-—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
The charge comprises: X HBE
Taxation in PRC R B R BER IE
Current year RNEE 33,358 17,091
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEREBNT (BREEE) 3,666 (5,447)
Withholding tax on dividends IR BB 1,442 7,303
38,466 18,947
Taxation in Taiwan SEEIE
Current year KEE 3,488 2,216
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBTR - 172
Withholding tax on dividend AR S FEHT 1,226 -
4,714 2,388
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions &8 & Efth Bl AR B 1A
Current year KEEZ 2,939 3,786
Underprovision in prior years BEFERBTR = 20
2,939 3,806
Deferred taxation (note 26) IEEFTE (Bi3E26)
Current year KEE (1,325) (548)
44,794 24,593
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax BIEP B RERZEMERE ([REMRE
(the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate Bl REBEMESHEEREN  B=
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. T N\F—A—BE PEAEREA

Al Z TR E25% -
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 5% and 13% on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries
respectively that are received by non-local resident entities. Withholding
tax on dividends of approximately HK$ 1,442,000 (2013: HK$7,303,000) and
HK$1,226,000 (2013: Nil) for PRC and Taiwan were recognized.

The PRC tax bureau initiated a tax audit on the PRC tax affairs of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group for the years 2012 and 2013.

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that the tax audit exercise
is still at a negotiation stage and no conclusion has been reached. Based
on various discussions with the PRC tax bureau, the PRC subsidiary is
now collecting relevant information in order to defend the tax position.
The directors opine that given the time involved in collecting such
information, the PRC subsidiary might not be able to safeguard the filing
position for the said years, and accordingly recognized an underprovision
of tax amounting to HK$4,478,000 and other related expenses amounting

to HK$6,222,000 (under other expenses) during the current year.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HIFE

FreHmx (@)

IR A B K B AN & AR B A I AR ) -
RPRREMSEHNBRRRNAE
A T BRI R IE R B E R U
2B BRETEMT T E B5%F13% o
REARERSENREENHERR
1,442,000/ 70 (ZE— =4 : 7,303,000
JT) A11,226,0008 7T (ZF—=4F : &)

FEBEEREASEN —FHPBEHEBEA
A ——FM_ZE—=FE2FEHK
BRI E TR IS T AT -

AEBESERE  BERITIEDER
TERPEER - mIREREM AR o BRIEE
PEAERKEREzZEHFNw ZPEKX
PEMB AR EEFUREMRBER - A
REBERREE - BFRAE - TR
ESEMERNEERE  FERAEMNBR
Ak RAEIR R LIl FE 2 308 - R
NEEHRIEEE T T /R4,478,00078
JC N E At FE B8 /0 B A € 886,222,000 7T
(EtBRA) -

RERMEFE  aECEMEHK
17%ETUR °

FRNGT I EA R EFEZ G5 ER
B M2 16.5%H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

8. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 8. FiIS¥HimxX )
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the ‘profit before tax’ per AFEMEL NEGEESREME2E
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive W RMTRBRBANRFEERAT ¢

income as follows:

2014 2013
et k2 —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit before tax BR B R A 116,274 83,052
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits of ERRHMERNEERR Z G
taxable entities in the countries concerned S AR R ERIE
(Note) (FaE) 24,677 16,421
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR S B2 TR 2
purpose 20,687 24,398
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  HB/B BT U zs 7 TiTE 2 28 (11,343) (5,981)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized RIERTIAEE - g2 9,578 1,201
Utilisation of tax losses previously not R BERER T
recognized E518 (5,159) (9,898)
Under(oven)provision in respect of prior years @B FEEBHEH T2 (RRERUE) 3,666 (5,255)
Tax effect of withholding tax on dividends BAERERZ R ETBINR 2B
previously not recognized 2 - 442
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits &R B AKPENE A 7] 2 R 9K % F)
of PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries ZIRERIBRE 2,688 3,265
Income tax expense for the year NEEFHIAEL H 44,794 24593
Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate MizE - AR ARER ZET R nl AR L
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction B - B S EERFE A E R
have been aggregated and presented. ;ﬁi ioﬁl BHEELHZBIHEEAHILTE
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REMBERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

Profit for the Year 9. XREEGF
2014 2013
—EB-QmF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after RERRMEHBR GTA) TF
charging (crediting): £I18 -
Staff costs: =M%
Directors'emoluments (note 10) EEMe (FizE10) 5,606 5578
Other staff salaries and allowances Hth B T Eri S 284 107,498 103,821
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, BRINEFEEER - TRE
excluding directors: BE
— defined contribution plans (note 23 (b)) — ERMEFKETE (FF230) 16,518 17,322
~ defined benefit plan (note 23 (a)) — EEEFEE (FizE23a) 290 497
Expense of share based payment SRR 1,095 1,040
Total staff costs BT KA4R%EE 131,007 128,258
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 47 - E R EFTE 38,544 39,226
Cost of inventories recognized as an expense EERARY ZFERA 104,216 99,900
Release of prepaid lease payments BO B ALt EER 311 312
Auditor's remuneration ZHEN S 3,802 3,668
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BEREE
equipment Z (BH) B8 (231) 1,710
Research and development costs F B B AN 3,707 3,294
Allowance for obsolete inventories, BREFERE GTAHEE
included in cost of sales BAR) 5,274 6,495
Advertising and promotion expenses BEMHEERX 36,797 32,066
Net exchange gain ME H 3 RE (1,686) (2,395)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥13% - &= &R RIE 9,895 =
Impairment of other receivables H A R ERRURE 12,511 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERFETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2013: twelve) ENSENT=% (ZE—=ZF: +=
directors and the chief executive were as follows: ) EBRFETHABZMEHOT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z—MF+-A=+—-HLEFE
Directors
iz
Mt Ms.NG Ms. Mr, Mr. Mr. Chief
Dr.SU Dr.  Patrick  Shiew  FENG ~ POON  Gregory Francis Ms. Total  Executive

DrTSAl  MrLEE  Chien-  SUSh-  Thomas  Yeing  Janine YeeMan  Michael ~GOUTEN-  SuMei MrCHEN ~ MrYANG  directors’  Ms.Chang Total
Yenu  MingTa  Cheng Hsyu ~ SIEWERT Christina  Junyuan ~ Alwin ~ ZELUCK ~ MACHER THOMPSON Ruey-long  Tze-Kaing emoluments KarenYiFen 014
Francis
GOUTEN-
AT ¥R BRY BRR REE SRR BEnT EEX BT miR  BER  RBR BT EEME ERUGE &%
Bt % B Bt & oz &t £E i% b3 It b3 73 & REFzt  -0E
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
TR TEn TEn THEr TER TEn THEr TER TEn TR TEr TR TEn  TER T TER

(Notei) (Note i)
(Notei) (Noteii)
Fees e 1,000 - 1,250 1,250 - - - - - 40 L) 40 40 4,460 - 4460
Other emoluments Eftie
Selaries and other benefit ESREMRER - 35 39 39 - - - - - - - - - 1016 5319 633
Cortrbution o etfement EUTIRE
benefits schere - 4% f f - - - - - - - - - 130 20 150
Fquityetted share based REEREERRH
payments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - m m
Total emoluments Hees 1,000 404 1621 1621 - - - - - 40 %40 40 40 5,606 6062 11,668
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10. Directors’ And Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

10. EERFETHAEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILLFE
Directors
EE
M MsNG Ms. Mr, Mr Chief
Drsy D Patrick Shieu FENG POON Francis M. Totl  Executive
DrTSA MeLEE Chien- SUSK- Thomas Yeng  Janine  YeeMan  GOUTEN- SuMei  MiCHEN  MCYANG  directos  Ms.Chang Total
YenYu  MingTa  Cheng Hoyu ~ SEWERT  Christing ~ Junyuan Awin - MACHER THOMPSON ~ Rueylong  TzeKaing emoluments  KarenYiFen 2014
Frandis
GOUTEN-
BET OTWE BB W mEE  RRM BEr EBX wmom  BEE WRE BRI EEEe EREAR A%
[ I B =SS o v N pd 7t i bt & BRERT I
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HKS000
Tar Tar Tar TEr TRr TEr TRr TEr  TAr TR TR TR TEn Tar  Tan
(Note )
(Notei)
Fees ik 1000 - IB0 180 - - 40 240 40 240 4460 4460
Other emoluments E s
Salaries and other beneflts  #4 REMAER - 34 316 316 = = = = 976 459 555
Contrbutions to etirement  RIRERIETEIEH
benefits scheme - 50 % 4% - - - - - - - 14 3 3
Euitysettled sharebased R AR E R
payments o - - - - - - - - - - - 48 468
Total emoluments He@s 1000 %1 1612 - - - - b bl 1) b 5578 5048 10626
Notes: st
(i) Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan resigned as director of the Company on 29 0) BELLZTR-_ZE—NFE+A=-+hHH
October 2014 BAERRAES -
(i) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned as director of the Company on 17 iy BFBREAER-_ZE——FRA++HE
May 2012 and was appointed as director of the Company on 29 October AARARBES WR=_FT—MFE+H=
2014, TNEBEZERES -
(i) Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a (i) BITESRIERTESZAIZHEHTINE

management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

SRR BT AR
TEEBARENERYBFE ZAR
AR NEIEREREREHEN15% °

REEZZT—=FKk=FT—NF+=A
=+ HIEREFE  AEEHBERE
EXNEMAME - ERRSIBEEMAR
EESEMAREER 2Bk EARE
BAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NMF+-_A=1T—HLFE

11. Employees’ Emoluments 11

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2013: three) of them were directors and the chief executive of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10
above. The emoluments of the two (2013: two) individuals were as follows:

. BEEM=

AEBRERRTFMALTH  HP=F
ZE—=F: =R) BARREERE
EITHRAER  BEZMEFBERLEX
Mo TE B TRE (ZE—=F:
MB) ALZEemT :

2014 2013

—2-mFE T =F

HKS$’000 HKS'000

F#ExT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 4,459 3,625
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  RRIE FIET 214 ER 9 29
4,468 3,654

The emoluments of the two (2013: two) individuals were within the

WG (CE—=F : WB) ZasALT

following bands: ZHE@NFUATER :
2014 2013
=F-mFE —FT=F
Headcount Headcount
N AER
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001,8 7T £ 1,500,000 7T = 1
HK$ 1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T 2 2,000,000 7T = =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T = =

12. Earnings Per Share 12. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$71,480,000 (2013: HK$58,269,000) and on
the number of 2,002,100,932 (2013: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2014 and 2013 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market price
in both years.
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e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

13. Dividends 13. RE
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Dividends recognized as distribution FRERABD RIS
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.021 per share BRI EIRE — —ZF—P4F
for 2014 (2013: HK$0.01 per share for 2013) BRR0021E T (ZF—=4%:
FH%001787T) 42,044 20,021
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.0163 per share IR REE S — T —=4F
for 2013 (2013: HK$0.0028 per share HR001638TL (ZF—=4%F :
for 2012) —E—- 58500028 TT) 32,634 5,606
74,678 25,627

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of
HKS$0.03188 per share (2013: final dividend of HK$0.0163 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013), amounting to
HK$63,826,978 (2013: HK$32,634,000) in aggregate has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

BEERRERNEBE-_Z—NWNF+=-A=
+—HIEFERARE S ]K0.03188%
T(ZE—=F:HEzZFT—=F+=
A=+—HBILFEXRPREER00163
BIL) » B 63826978 L (ZE—=
F 32,634,000 7T) - MEZBF AR R A AN
HERITZRRBAFRSELERT A
E&

i

o

\
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HILFE

14.

132

Investment Properties

14. REWE

HKS$'000

FAT
FAIR VALUE NFE
At 1 January 2013 WZZ—=F—H—H 5,962
Exchange realignment i 3, & (195)
Increase in fair value recognized in profit or loss RIBEER 2 A EE I 196
At 31 December 2013 RZB—=F+-A=+—H 5963
Exchange realignment FE 5 3% (326)
Increase in fair value recognized in profit or loss RERER A FEEN 278
At 31 December 2014 RZE—OF+=-H=+—H 5915
The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December AEBEZREMER-_FT—NOFR_Z

2014 and 2013 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried

out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, independent

qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia

Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members of the Institute of Valuers, and

have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at

using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of

recent transaction prices for similar properties in the similar locations and

conditions.
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14.

Investment Properties (Continued)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated on

freehold land in Taiwan.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

“E-NE+ZA=+—RHIFE

14. REWE 8)

A=

EPREME (REENEXAR) 2R

KA o

Fair value Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy Valuation technique inputs(s) input(s) to fair value

AFE TAER 2 WARE

=8 fh{ER % FERTBERZBARE BN TFEZBER

Level 3 Direct comparison method Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation rate, the
=% and income method account of the capitalisation of lower the fair value

BEERLEBREWEDE

The key inputs are:

TERABIER

1) Capitalisation rate;

2) Monthly rent;

3) Price per square metre
N BRXMER:

2 RAM:

3 BFIKER

rental income potential nature of the
property, prevailing market condition
ERex  ZREBREHRTY
R BEMSRREERNER

Monthly rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account
of age, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and layout/design of the base level
R EREEMISA L ERI
ErkiEhk LERERHNEZE -
L — B ERERE  WEEE
KR/ R EEERGB,

ins
axXal °

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparable and taking into
account of location and other
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property, etc. of the
base level

BEHRER  EREEMSA
L BB Z B R AL E K H At fE 5
AxE - EnBEKaEsE v
FEEF

BAREYRIRERIR

BERfexfs - A HEBE

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value

AR - AFEES

The higher the price per square
metre, the higher the fair value

FYIKERER - AFEES
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PN

iy =1

B R R P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE-T—MET-A=+—AILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

134

15. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Motor fixturesand  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
KA%HE BE £E
1 BT HENERE HERES "E Rkt EEIE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  THEn TAR ThR ThRL ThR TEr  THErn
cosT DS
At 1 January 2013 W-ZE-=F
—-A-A 17,693 186,215 65,294 45726 2970 71,288 12527 401,713
Exchange realignment  [E} % (570) 228 1,019 523 (34 835 468 4469
Additions b = - 2,146 0684 374 7713 11653 22570
Disposals it = = (1529) = (639) (2,007) = @171
Transfer B - - 54 3583 - 1,641 (5278) -
At31December 2013 RZE-=%
+-A=1-H 17123 188443 66,984 50516 2675 79470 19370 424581
Exchange realignment [} 3% (1,107) (681) (1447) (1915) (107) (1373) (55) (6,685)
Additions R = = 442 1249 1573 4057 11,204 18525
Disposals i - = (3622) (@) (1.283) (%46) = 6272)
Transfer g = = 1,656 1382 = 16,543 (19,581) =
Impairment A = = (9,883) = = (12 = 9.895)
Written off i = (380) (289) = = (954) = (1623)
At31December 2014 R-E-ME
+-R=+-H 16016 187,382 53841 50811 2858 96,785 10938 418631
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%
—A-A = 55321 12405 17227 2137 41861 = 128,951
Exchange realignment [ 3 3% - 726 554 20 27) 74 = 1,547
Provided for the year FREE = 3068 13,388 6941 359 15470 - 39,226
Eliminated on disposals 1 ERF 8 = = (496) = (404) (1461) = (2.361)
At31December 2013 MZE-=F
+=-A=1+-H = 59115 25851 24188 2,065 56,144 = 167,363
Exchange realignment B X 2% - (161) (834) (1,009) (55) (1133) = (3,189)
Provided for the year FREE - 2,784 12212 7003 254 16,291 - 38544
Eliminated on disposals 1 ERF 8 = = (3622) (383) (1275) (893) = (6173)
Written off W - (380) (289) = = (954) = (1623)
At31December 2014  RZE-ME
+-A=1+-H - 61358 33318 29803 989 69455 - 194923
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31 December 2014  MZZ—MF
+-R=t-H 16016 126,024 20523 21,008 1869 27330 10938 223,708
At31 December2013  MZZ—=%
+-R=t-H 17123 129328 41133 26328 610 23326 19370 257,18
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15. Property, Plant And Equipment (Continued)
The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are
situated on:

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

15. Y% - MERRE @
itk ALETIRET EEED L
SRR ) IR -

2014 2013
—F-mFE —F=F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Land in the PRC held under medium-term AP BIREEAR R P Bl -t 5 RIS A
land use rights b ) 120,336 117,533
Freehold land in Taiwan NE ISR 7K AERE 21,704 28918
142,040 146,451

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period

of the lease and estimated useful

life of 3 to 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10years
Motor vehicles 3 - 5years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years

During the year, the directors conducted a review on the Group's property,
plant and equipment and determined that a number of those assets were
impaired. Accordingly an impairment loss of HK$9,895,000 (2013: nil) has

been recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment.

EdWE - BMERKEERE (EETE
BRON) IMEREERBUATFRNE -

IKAFREL M #

BF 40%F

HEWMHEEE RE WA & B ek
FTRIEAFHBRET0
F (UABEEBE)

RS R i 2% 5— 104

E 3—5%

RE - REKEE 2155

FAN - EFHAEERNYE  BE KK
HETRAAE - EEMNRE - Bit
R E - B/FE K& #9,895,000/% 7T #Y
RIEE K (2013 : 48) -
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e VI RARM R

iy =1

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—MF+_A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

136

Prepaid Lease Payments

16. AT HHEER

2014 2013
=F-mFE T =F
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise 2.8~ 8 A+ E KB4
leasehold land rights in the PRC under AR B R AR 15 A (s AR A
medium-term land use rights B ZHE T ERRE 9,412 9,765
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TLERSRFS DT T
Non-current asset IEMBEE 9,102 9,453
Current asset mENEAE 310 312
9,412 9,765
Goodwill 17. &
HK$'000
AT
COST D%
At 1 January 2013 NW_E—=9—H—H 30,835
Exchange realignment PE 732
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-_A=+—H 31,567
Exchange realignment [ 54, 2R 8 (103)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—ME+-_HA=+—H 31,464
IMPAIRMENT BIE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R-Z—=F—H—H8 —Z—=F
31 December 2014 +—A=t+t—HBR-_ZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 3,192
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H 28,272
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-A=+—H 28375
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17. Goodwill Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to an
individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in the
PRC CGU. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2014 and
2013 are allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over five years are
extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount rate of 8% (2013:
8%). One key assumption for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

17. BHE (&)

HREARANE  BECEIREET
ReEEASBMN - IRPEIREHESE
REMm BRSEAEMN ([ReELSE
D)  RZE—WFER_T—=F+=
A=T—B:HEREEI REELR
SEEEM -

ReELEM OB REER
EBEFEETE - FEHEZERERED
WHEZAFMBHBELEHERE K
REH e REREFRR  MAF2HE
MEBAREBTRERR ZRJ R8WMER
R(ZF—=5F : g0l - EAEEFT
Btz m—HAIBZRREMBFRER
A/ B e (BRERAEHEERER
) FRAMGFTRASELBEN 2BER
BEREREHMSERCTAHEE - &
BEME TAREBRRZETAAER
EREPHHITSEFUREELEU 2K
HAEBLLREELEM 2 P OE

TH -

18. Inventories 18. &
2014 2013
—2-mFE —T=F
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET TFHETT
Raw materials AT 25,386 27378
Finished goods Rk 19,650 19,669
45,036 47,047
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HILFE

19. Trade and Other Receivables

19. ES R EMEWRIERR

2014 2013

—F—nmE —F=F

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHExT T4t

Trade receivables E G EWBRR 53,262 85216
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T REREME (2,460) (1,536)
50,802 83,680

Prepayments TEFRIR 9,481 11,208
Other receivables E b RIS BR TR 7,175 17,736
Total trade and other receivables E b pr IR BR T AR 67,458 112,624

The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to two months to its
trade customers. Trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates are all aged within 60 days at the end of the reporting

period.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have no history of defaulting on repayments.
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. EZREMBWERR (9
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBRESD
2014 2013
—ET-nmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Balance at the beginning of the year FH4EH 1,536 1338
Amounts recovered during the year Frhlyo s (229) (446)
Allowance on receivables FEM AR SR 1,159 644
Exchange realignment b SR (6) =
Balance at the end of the year TR 2,460 1,536
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired RERELECENRECE S EWE
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$2,460,000 (2013: R RS ERHARE 2,460,000 T (ZF —
HK$1,536,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The =4 :1,536,000/7T) - BRI
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. EADNRTBEE - NEBEWEFEH
R A AR o
During the year, the directors conducted an impairment assessment on FR - EFR—AARERRIEREN
prepayment and other receivables in relation to a spa-resort project and B E M E W FEIT T BRER S - I
determined that an impairment loss of HK$12,511,000 was recognized. T#3212,511,00078 JLAYREE X o
Bank Balances and Cash 20. RITHEEFRES

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 3.25%
per annum (2013: 0.03% to 3.08% per annum).

At 31 December 2014, the Group's bank deposits of US$589,000 (2013:
USS$1,113,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$4,566,000 (2013:
HK$8,626,000)) was denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.

RITEERES
RTEFERASEREASEMBRER

RESHAA=EARARNZIEHETE
Mo BRAFIERMSFEE - FRX
N F001%E325% (ZE—=F : FF|
R0.03%Z23.08%) °

EA—%—@¢+:H:+—E CERA
589,000% 7T (=& — = 4F : 1,113,000
7T) (F8 & W #94,566,0007% T (_ T —=
F 186260008 70)) 2 AEERITHE
o DIREESEERGEEE NN
E¥ETE -
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HE-ZT—MF+-_A=+—RHLFE

21. Trade and Other Payables 21. EZRHEMEFERR
2014 2013
—F-mE —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Trade payables B S ENERR 18,577 21,266
Deposits from customers EFP#He 43,576 58,176
Other tax payables HAbFEFRIR 13,442 8,116
Accruals FENER 62,841 54,935
Other payables H b FEATARK 14,878 12,017
Total trade and other payables 5 LA MR IR 153,314 154,510
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on RBEHREER  REZAHFESZ
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. P2 B S REMERRER ST -
2014 2013
—F-—mE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within 180 days 180HIA 16,209 18,306
181 days to 365 days 181HZE365H 89 1,087
Over 365 days EHiE365H 2,279 1873
18,577 21,266
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group BEERZFHEERAWE - KEEH
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables EHIEHBEEREIRRE  UEERMAE
are settled within the credit timeframe. FEMBRFIIN R EEERRANER -
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22. Deferred Income

23.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—_ZT—NMF+_A=+—HILFE

22, EIEW

2014 2013

—F-mFE T =F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Prepaid treatment fees TENERE 7,577 7,779

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognized in profit
or loss upon provision of the services to the customers.

Retirement Benefits Plans

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes
at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved by the
relevant government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months' salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group's net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2013: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

BEEWSIEREPHEXEREMES
EAR  XEZERBRSWRZHE - AR
MR FIRERMREBRRER

23. RKEFEHE

(a)

BAREYRIRERIR

EREA TS
AEESENBARRERESD
IR (BEFT) 2mh REKE
& MAETRERERER - KX
SEEETRREMAIAERH
B RUXNEERBAEZE
M o REEIRILH & BE2%1F D
HE - AL ARG ERE
ERAE - RIBERREE - BEA
FRZEARBNOAT : RE15ER
BEE  SFUZAMEERMEA
e RIEF - R E1SERBEFE
Bz& SFAZARER A
A¥re 2 BINEH - HEE605RE T
BRI E X TSHBB45E A H
& o NGB E IR EARAK
®BEM o

AEBBRKSFTEIMAE BB
FEE - DiRESRF AT AMERE
HARTS M BRERFT 15 2 B & & FI TR 5T
THFE  BERENSMANEE
HE  TENRERFEEEZA
FE - BEEFTERA BB BEME
BB ARKAETE - R
T—NER—_E—=FF+_A=+
—AZRBEHEHERBESE
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HE-ZT—MF+-_A=+—RHLFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. BIRERGFE @)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAGE (B
()  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the () HETHREGRERAEAZ
actuarial valuations were as follows: FERRKRMT :
2014 2013

—F—QmE —F=F

Discount rate BRIR & 1.90% 1.90%
Expected return on plan assets sHEIEE 2 a3k =R 1.90% 1.90%
Expected rate of salary increases AR S S e E 3.25% 3.00%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan BEMERREEEZT
assets was HK$1,254,000 (2013: HK$1,346,000). E51,2540008 7T (ZE—=
% 1 1,346,00047T) °
(i) Amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect of the defined iy AEEBRFABEREKZIEHE
benefit plans are as follows: BRFEISEOT ¢
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current service cost RS AR AN 54 284
Interest on obligations EI5F B 260 245
Expected return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 TEHIE H (24) 32)
290 497
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REMBERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—ME+_A=+—HIFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. RARERGFE @)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHREAE (B
(i) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income inspect iy A"EBBEFAEMEEIRK
of the defined benefit plans are as follows: mERZEERBAMGE 2 E
LU

2014 2013

—F-mE —T=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FHT

Remeasurement on the net defined B s+ 2% E 2887

benefit liability: AfE:
— Expected return on plan assets —FrEIEE BB R 498 a7)
— Actuarial loss arising from — BT EEECREE
remeasurement 518 (10) 3,401
488 3,384
(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of vy, ANEBEFTALGZETBEMRR
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in WMECEHEBENFEES
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: AT
2014 2013
—F—mFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Present value of funded defined B KRR EATE SR FER
benefit obligations ZIRE 13,874 14322
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC ATE (1,252) (1,346)
Net liability arising from defined EREMBEES
benefit obligations ZEaE 12,622 12,976
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

23. BIRERGFE @)

144

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAGE (B
(v)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v) AEEFHBENEBHREZ

obligations in the current year were as follows: BEINT
2014 2013
=F-mFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 14,322 15,610
Current service cost IR B AR AS Ak A 184 284
Interest on obligations BEBFE 260 245
Benefits paid BfEF (603) (1,306)
Actuarial gain (losses) EEWE (E518) 498 7)
Exchange differences on foreign plans /&4t 2 ME X = %8 (787) (494)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8H 13,874 14322

v) AFEFEEERFEZ

=<
year were as follows: BT

2014 2013

—E-mE —T-=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January R—H—H8 1,346 2,038
Contributions from the employer BEFH= 548 645
Expected return on plan assets FHEIE E 2 TEHAE 24 32
Benefits paid BEF (603) (1,306)
Actuarial gains (losses) BENE (B8) 1 “)
Exchange differences on foreign plans /@5 EIFE 3 Z= 48 (74) (59)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H~ 1,252 1,346
Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE C B B 10 5
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on
historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market
for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

23. RIRERFHE (&)
(a) EHEEFE (7))

(vi)

KEEHUEEATEL B
BmT (&)

E=MERBAEHRFE IR
BERERBRELZROTEY
BEMSARRT @A ZE
AIETT -

AEIEEZ T 2RI LR
BREMEEERSEMNGE
AEEEATEZAS L
W

2014 2013

—EB-mE —E-=F

% %

Deposits with financial institutions B TSI TT AR 19.12 22.86
Short term bills yS R R 1.98 410
Stocks ah) 12.15 841
Bonds B5 11.92 937
Others HAith 54.83 55.26
100.00 100.00

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$13,652,000 (increase by HK$13,227,000).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by
HK$14,869,000 (decrease by HK$15,811,000).

BAREYRIRERIR

ErTREGHMAEERE
BRAMAXRNBERGFSE
e AT BRERE DT IR
ERBINBEHRREER 2
BEFREHRKME Ei
SRR T EMETE ©

— R BE IR E o Ot
) 100ME & 2o Bl
TE %8 18 B & 1% %/
13,652,000 7C (3& jn
13,227,000) °

- WREHEH LK
nCrk ) 1% Al &
R A E B E M
14,869,000/ 7T OFl 4
15,811,000/ 7T) © .
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HILFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

146

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(b) Defined contribution plans

0]

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and
6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there
is no cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HIHFE

23. BIRERGFE )

Defined contribution plans (Continued) (b) TEERMRETE (&)

(i)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$16,668000
(2013: HK$17,495,000) represents contributions paid on
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

(if)

REBEPBEAENB AR
BEERTERMAEE BER
BB BHEIKE - B
R B R R ERESBEDER
ME RETEAEREEZ
MEEREREREREZTE
BUBRNGTE - BEEAE
WER Z BRRE TR B A B
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SEAEREBRKEE
B HRBRRETHEE
EREAEEFBEAEREES
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-T N+ -A=1T—"HLFE

24. Share Capital

24, R

25.

148

Number
of shares Share capital
RGHE [N
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREE BT RS
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F—H—H —F—=%
31 December 2014 +-A=+—BKRK-_ZF—NF
+=-A=+—~” 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R-ZE—=F—H—H —ZF—=F
31 December 2014 TZA=+—RARZZE—NEF
+—A=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme would remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly the same
as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods was approved at the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM") on 13 May 2011. Upon the approval of
the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM
on 13 May 2011.
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less
than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant

option.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

25.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HIFE
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BRT - REEFSEAUTERZK
B QRRRESLAN (BARY
20) ROEHIFEEREEARK
B RORBEBBRRERZL A
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25.

150

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or the

refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders’

approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

As at 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New
Scheme was 81,685,713 (2013: 61,564,600) (representing 4.1% (2013: 3.1%)
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date).

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2014

25.

AR REEE (@)
AAFAAETLEE R BB 2T
FEREE S E 3t BB ER 3 AR AE -
WAHARSREMLREAGEL ILE
RFIBBEIZ BT o

A RRIEF T B R AR A (HHBAF)
EREMEFEEREBRRITREZHAE
REETATEREITZRODEE - T
FHBBANR (HEABHBLRR) TR
BT 2 ARBARIESFZ230% - KR
BESEEUMBITESEARE - B
TEREARR (HEAMBRR) 2E
fa] 5T &R R HE

R-_ZE—mE+-A=+—8  REH
FTEIE R RITE 2 RIREFT ISR
D8 B A81,685713 (=T — Z4F :
61,564,6000%) ("2 A& B B #1717
41% (CBE—=4F :31%)) °



25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
granted under the New Scheme held by employees during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014:

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

25. RRETTE )
TEBEREE T =GR _Z—0
F+-A=+—AILEEARTRE
FHBEABEYHEERA Y RREY
BE)

Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Granted Cancelled forfeited Granted Cancelled forfeited
Exercisable Everdse  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Dateof grant ~period price  at1.1.2013 the year the year theyear  at1.12014 the year the year theyear  at31.12.2014
R-%-Bf
RZB-ZF RZB-mE 28
-A-H Fhal/ -A-H FhaxN/ =t-A
RUAH s k8 BT Fh ERs B BT FRiR Fhas Bl BATE
4 April 2012 4 pprl 20130 HKS1.90 152159 - (1121176) (400420) - - - - -
“F-F 3 Aprl 2021 19087
MAmA “T-=FQA
AE-5--%
MA=H
4 April 2012 4 April 2014 t0 HKS1.90 152159 S (1121,176) (400420) - - - - -
-5 3 Aprl 2001 1908
MARA “T-LERA
MAZ-2--%
A=H
4 April 2012 4 April 2015t HKS1.90 15215% - (1121,176) (400420) - - - - -
- 3 Aprl 2001 1907
MAmA ~E-1ERA
MEZE-Z--%
MA=A
19 April 2013 19 April 202210 HKS099 - 36438233 = (12913551) 21352468 - - (9009454) 14515208
3 18 Aprl 203 099%7L
MAtAR —E-—#MmA
ThAE-%E-z%
ATIA
10May 2013 10May 2022 to HKS099 = 38039918 = = 38039918 = - - 38039918
Bk 9 May 203 09957
EATE  ZBIZERR
tEE-%3-=%
"ANA
6May 2014 6May 20230 HK%099 - - - - - 34536239 - (13,013655) 21522584
i 5 May 2024 099787
BARE ZE-ZFERf
NAZZZ-RE
TARA
2 December 2014 2 December 2023 to HKS099 - - - - - 7607983 - - 7607983
—E-mE 1 December 2024 09987
toAZR ZE2o=EtCA
ZRZ-Z-RE
+-A-R
4564788 74478151 (3363528 (14114811) 61,564,600 14m - (22023109 81,685,713
Exercisable at the end of the year Ni
ERETAR &
Weighted average exercise price HKS190 HKS099 HKS190 HKS099 HKS099 HKS099 HKS099 HKS099 HKS099
T EE 0BT 09AT 10T 09ET 0BT 099ET  0WAT  09AT  09ET
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25.

152

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 4 April 2011, the Company granted share options (2011 Options”)
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 90,895,381 shares
and was vested over a four-year period subject to the achievement of

performance targets determined by the board of directors.

On 19 April 2013, the Group cancelled 3,363,528 2011 Options and
accounted for such cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and
therefore recognized immediately approximately HK$919,000 that
otherwise would have been recognized for service received over the
remainder of the vesting period.

Following the cancellation of the aforesaid remaining 2011 Options, an
aggregate of 42,144,222 share options (2014 Options”) (2013: 74,478,151
share options (2013 Options")) were granted to the employees and senior
management of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014.
Details are set out below:

25.

PRAEET & (&)
N-B——EANA - ARFEET

B B 1] R B & %1%90,895,381 A% 19
2R (= ——%&%)Wﬁﬁmk
ETERUERNE SEIFGANAEE

ﬁi%@%%mZﬁi%ﬁﬁ%o

R_ZE—=FMA+NIB AEETHE
#23363528- T ——ERWHE - X
ﬁtﬁ%%iﬁﬁﬁkbuifﬁﬁé%zkﬂﬁv FH 1Lt B B B
REBZNE I SRR T R B BT
BRERATER 2SR - £919,000%8
G

RIS T T —— FRREE A
SRR -_Z—NF+-_A=1+—HMAE
BREHREEABRILBE42,1442220
BiEg((ZE—HFERRE)(ZE—=
F 74478151 RBE (2T —=FR
BRHE]) o FEBHIIAT -

Number of
share options
granted
REZREHE

Grant date
6 May 2014
2 December 2014

-
—=—
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Each of the 2013 Options and 2014 Options (collectively “the Options”) will
vest over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the publication of
the audited financial results of the Group for the financial year 2014 (in the
case of 2013 Options), year 2015 (in the case of May 2014 Options) and
year 2016 (in the case of December 2014 Options) (respectively referred
to as the “First Year”, as the case may be) respectively, at the rate of up to
a maximum of 40% for the First Year and up to a maximum of 20% for
each of the following three years, subject to (i) the achievement of the
performance targets for each financial year as determined by the Board
at its sole discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining as an Eligible
Person (as defined in the share option scheme of the Company) at the
time of each vesting of the Options. Also, the option holders can only
exercise the 2014 Options and 2013 Options nine years after the date of
granting the options provided that if the employment or service with the
Company or any of the subsidiaries of the option holders is terminated
with cause or the option holders resign from their employment or service
without good reason (as stipulated in the share option scheme), the
2014 Options and 2013 Options granted but not yet exercised will lapse
automatically. Accordingly, the vesting period for these options under
accounting treatment is regarded as a nine-year period, which is from
the date of grant to the beginning of the earliest exercisable date of the
options.

The estimated fair values of the 2014 Options granted on 6 May 2014 and
2 December 2014 were approximately HKS$2,696,219. These fair values
were calculated using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

25.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HIFE

RIRETE ()

TECZFRBER T - NFREE
(T8 A | R )& D B B AL E )3
TE-NFUBRFEERE (BT —=FR
BiEms)  —S—AFMBREE (=
T-NFRARKENS) k=T —
FOHREE (M- —WNE+ - AZRK
EmME) (DRIEAIE—F]  RBERM
) BRI EEEE BT 8N
B BB EAE —FTHZIEA%
B -ZFEFREZENN RREZH
BIEGANBXFER  (WAEHE
ZeNBETRFEEENBERATEZX
REE: RIREREFTEALEDA
AEBAL (EERARAZRBRER
) o AN - REFEARTN T —
NERBEMN T —=FRBRERLH
BN FRITEZERRE - R
EFEAANERQRSEMHEARZE
Bk RIS BAEEBR IESRIREREF A
ERDEAME RSN EIEIRERS (10
RAREETEIFTARE) « EFTER B HKRTT
Fr T NFRBREN—_FT—=FR
REEEIRK - ALt - EFUASFTRE
ZRBENEBHRSABRLEAHER
Mt i BRI T{F H HARA A 2 N EBR -

R-ZE—NMERARNBR - —NE+
“AZHERRZZE—NFRRENG
A FE A #2,69621978 7T o Eall A F
BENRBZHEATERENGE -

BREAZBAZEMT

Grant date 6.5.2014 2.12.2014
—E-mE ZE-WmF
RHAEH HAKE +=A=H
Weighted average share price B B H 2 IS AR (E
as at date of grant HKS$0.35 HKS0.75
Exercise price 1IE(E HK$0.99 HK$0.99
Time to maturity FIHAEARR 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility TEERIE 39.3% 41.0%
Dividend yield REF =R 447% 4.35%
Risk-free interest rate A= 2.07% 1.73%
Fair value of share options AR 2 AN FHE HK$0.0391 HK$0.1768
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. RIREHE (@)
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the AERREATEMERACEHEER
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in B DEREBZHREMETMEL - &
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the YRBE{2EHIEEHRREZLATF
options. BB TG °
Expected volatility was determined by historical daily volatilities of the TEHIR IR Ty AR B E =L E A AR A AR
Company’s share prices as at the valuation date. BZBABRKIRET °
The Group recognized approximately HK$1,095,000 share based payment AEEERGZEBREMZEKER
expense (2013: HK$1,040,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or P FEARRB MR 2 BIREERL
loss and other comprehensive income in relation to share options granted 1,095,000 TIRHAHAZ (ZT—=
by the Company during the current year. F ¢ BB D1 5R1,040,0009 7T ) ©
26. Deferred Taxation 26. IEAEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognized and AFEERBEFERA T EZRLERE
movements thereon during the current or prior years: BE(BE) UREZFHHIMOT -
Undistributed
Allowance  Revaluation Other  earnings of
for bad and of Defined  Unrealised  short-term PRCand
doubtful  investment benefit  profitson  temporary overseas
debts  properties liability inventories  differences  subsidiaries Total
AR
R
Eff bk AR  HtEH HWEARZ
RERRE RENE BAEE REER EREE XOREA st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL THL THEL THEL THAL
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F
=J3=[g] 295 822 4750 6,243 (548) (10,878) 684
Bxchange realignment [ 3 35% 40 (26) (160) 189 2 (322) (258)
Credit (charge) to profit PR R A
or loss (10k) 4 (33) 550 (662) pz} (3,265) (3342
Earnings distributed ERREF - - - - - 3,890 3,890
At31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+ZA=1+—H 379 763 5,140 5770 (503) (10575) 974
Bxchange realignment [ 3 355 ) @1 (281) (26) 36 24 (290)
Credit (charge) to profit  FMEZFRETA
or loss (H0kx) 248 (48) 61 1,006 78 (2689) (1,343)
Earnings distributed B AIRER - - - - = 2,668 2668
At31 December 2014 ~ RA=FT—ME
+-B=+—H 625 674 4920 6,750 (389) (10571) 2,009
154  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. Deferred Taxation (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$151,607,641 available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognized of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$170,948,000 (2013: HK$178,762,000).

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—MOF+_A=+—HIFE
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27. Operating Leases 27. REHY
The Group as lessee REBIERARBEA
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises and FRN - AEERBSEHAORBABRD
stores under operating leases as follows: EVERIEHHEHSOT ¢
2014 2013
et k2 —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Minimum lease payments IR 18,909 19,904
Contingent rental payments ARSI 17,947 17,537
36,856 37441
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RBRESELEER - KREBERBETAH
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases LT 2 B2 KRS RIE
which fall due as follows: REFBERAT :
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Within one year —FR 12,795 13,366
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZFERF (RIEEREME) 16,664 7,49
Over five years HBidRF 1,380 1,927
30,839 22,787
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KERNFBENAEE G E THEYE
certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed MAXNzHBE - BHOKER%E - HE
for an average term of five years. FHRB\RE - HEARNKREEHES °
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic LA EREEREERESAE I
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable, TEERNzABEEE (B &
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of RS2 EHEBE—BHLAEET
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in %)  RARTHERAEEE@IA
advance the amount of such contingent rentals. HEZRH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

27. Operating Leases (Continued) 27. KEHDY @)
The Group as lessor AEBEAHBEA
Property LS
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,298,000 (2013: FRNBRMABz2wER2ERAR
HK$3,423,000), net of outgoings of HK$608,000 (2013: HKS1,649,000) for 2,298,000 7T (= F — = 4 : 3,423,000
renting office premises. All of the properties held have committed tenants Bir) HEMBRHEERAETMERS
for the next one to five years. 608,000 7T (= & — = & : 1,649,000/8

TO) c ARERBZAEMERRE—Z
RO EETAM -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants R EHEEEE  AEEHEBE,PEE]
for the following future minimum lease payments: Az BEHEHESMNZAT
2014 2013
—2-mFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year — &R 1,385 3,904
In the second year to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF (BIEEEMTF) 1,083 980
2,468 4,884
28. Capital Commitments 28. BANEILE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition 2 5] 4B R RERE B iR

of property, plant and equipment BEE R
contracted for but not provided R M it BRI
in the consolidated financial statements 1,475 14,926
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures 29 BAERBBALIRZZEE
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related FR - AEETHEBBATETEAR
parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the 5o BB RFTES EMMRANZHEE -
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The FRABAMATTERERBEAL - F
significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows: A AEBEZHPBEATETZCEAR

ST
(A) TRANSACTIONS (A X5
(i)  Connected parties (i) PBEEAL
2014 2013
—EB-mEF —T—=fF
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
AT EE XEME FExT FHET

Companies controlled by individuals who
collectively have joint control over the
Company’s ultimate holding company and
are also executive directors of the Company:

£ R A A1 )N 1 AR ASSEIR 23 AT#R IR 73
AL FIBTTEEZ AN LA -

MEEASIEMEREXHEEESS Rental income 13 16
Gizhedl iy

SHEBRERELRMHERAT Rental income 15 16
sk g

ERELERNOBRAFR Rental income 5 -
e

Company controlled by substantial shareholder:

FEREAIER|A]

CA NB Limited Consultancy fee expenses 4,416 4416
BERERXH
Directors of the Company:
ARFEE -
Individuals who collectively have joint control Rental expenses 7,142 7,303
over the Company’s ultimate holding e

company and are also executive directors of
the Company

SR AIE S AR RIS AIER A RIFR A &
RRARHITESZ ZHAAL
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued) 29. BERBBMALIRZ Z2HE

(&)
(A) TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (A) X5 (&)
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEEAEZIRM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERAMEIEZETEABR
management during the year was as follows: FRZMEWT -
2014 2013
—2-mFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Short-term benefits HAE R 21,799 16,553
Post-employment benefits BERRE 2R 152 217
Equity-settled share based payments IR A = A AR 15X 723 468
22,674 17,238
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EZRFETHRABZHE
determined by the remuneration committee having TTHTFEMEZEeLLXZ [
regarded to the performance of individuals and market RERMIGHBAEET -

trends.
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

160

(B)

OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

0]

(if)

(iif)

On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with a director of the Company. Under
the agreements, the director agreed to license a number of
trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive basis, for a nominal
consideration of NTS$1. The licensing agreements will be
effective till the expiry of the registration of the respective
trademarks, which are in 2015 and 2019.

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-free,
fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks
on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu as the licensor and the
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement
pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a
non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and
irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use
certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—-ME+_A=+—HULFE

29. BENRBBAIXRZZHE

(#)

(B) EHftbZHk (&)

(iv)

BAREYRIRERIR

RZZEENFTATER
EEEELT  HERFEL
#R =3B 18 L KNatural Beauty
Magazine Yang Chio Ling (1
REEA) BARQE (ERE
EAN)IUEEEEE - &
I HEALOB T ZRE
MAEAEES THE -
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EREEL ERE#EN) K
RRE (ERERET) 7]
MEFR R o B RKE
TA0B T2 R(E > MER
RAOTBEMIEER - RIFATE
ERE - &  XKAERT
Al S 2 B R R A - A
REREMWERE TEER
1% MR AT BLERE T P
BZEBERBHEAR -

“E-NEFHE 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RARM R

iy =1

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—MF+_A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

162

30. AT ZHBEMRRKR
AATZHBERRBEES T -

follows:
2014 2013
—ZE—F =%
HK$’000 HKS'000
TET FHET
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 169,398 169,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUFI B A R FIE 252,354 317,557
Other receivables E b I BR TR 856 3813
Bank balances and cash IRITEF RIS 723 16,458
423,331 507,226
Liabilities afE
Other payables H b FEATARK 2,728 2573
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIHIB A RZIA 34,690 34,892
37,418 37,465
Net assets BEFE 385,913 469,761
Capital and reserves AR AN R
Share capital &N 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) & () 185,703 269,551
385,913 469,761
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e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NOF+_A=+—HILFE

Statement of Financial Position of the Company 30. &2 B Z BB REW*K (@)
(Continued)
Note: M5 -
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RORE RAREMRE KRBEA st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=%—AF—H 41,016 2,123 228,660 271,799
Profit for the year REE R - = 22,339 22339
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment — FEsRR% AR5 45 B AR - 5K = 121 = 121
Cancellation of unvested share options TR BRI = 919 = 919
Transfer upon cancellation of share option A SR AR A o 8 T 4 = (2483) 2483 S
Dividends recognized as distribution (Note 13) REDTERZ RS (FF13) = - (25,627) (25,627)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—8 41,016 680 227,855 269,551
Loss for the year AFEEE = = (10,265) (10,265)
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment — FERAR ARE S A E AR D3R - 1,095 = 1,095
Dividends recognized as distribution (Note 13) R AED RIS (BiEE13) - - (74,678) (74,678)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+-_A=+—H 41,016 1,775 142912 185,703
. . 3 =

Capital Risk Management 31. EXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

AEEFEEEREARRETEERKA
T ARFOHEFRRALR - AEE
ZEBREEREFMER -

AEBERNGERBRATCIRESEE
MARARNRARIGEREANRE#ER - BRED
BTN - RERRERT -

RRBEEBFF—ERFTENERE
Rt AR —R EXQ@EEE
ERARSRERZBERR - RIEE
E2EF  AREBEBIRMNEA - %
TR R R D HBETHEB 2T
A FEEBRELRGE -
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32. Financial Instruments

164

32a.

32b.

32. @I A

Categories of financial instruments 32a. R T A¥E A
2014 2013
—E—MF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables BRI ERAER
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREESRBESESED) 641,260 608,825
Financial liabilities SEBEE
Amortised cost B SER AR 33,454 60,342

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group's exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances at the
end of the reporting period. For bank balances, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of balances at the end of the
reporting date were outstanding for the whole year. 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease (2013: 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease) are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points higher/5 basis points
lower (2013: 20 basis points higher/5 basis points lower) and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 would increase
by HK$1,167,000/decrease by HK$292,000 (2013: increase
by HKS$1,015,000/decrease by HK$254,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—-ME+_A=+—HULFE

32. €@ T A ()
32b. MEEREEBEREE (&)

misEE (&)

(i)

BAREYRIRERIR

FIEAR ()
BB

T ERE 517 TR B3R 4T
SRR B BAEY 2
EEMRTER - HIRTETT
TE - PR RSB
HEEZEFOERTRE
MR- AEEEEARA
2565 90RO R 220
1125 85 48 10 R R 2 B0
—T—=f  20fARBE M
RSEEHEL) - RBRETE
BHAE 2 AR EERD
e

it 1) 2= 18 H02018 2 25 R
SEEZ (T — =4 : #n
20125 RSB EE) -
i AT A Hfh B B
REBEBEE-_T—NE+—
A=+—RLEFEZBREE
i ) 38 12 101,167,000 7T
B A292,0008 L (ZF — =
4 ¢ 3% H01,015,000% 7T, 8
4254000 7T) © EEZHR
RNEBRIRITEFEE 2 F
REK
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE_T-MF+-_A=+—HLFE

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group's subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to
HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen from the
carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

32c.

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the ten largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 10% (2013: 10%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 3% (2013: 2%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC excluding Hong Kong, which accounted for 92%
(2013: 94%), and Taiwan, which accounted for 7% (2013:5%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2014

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2013 and
2014.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

BE-%—

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT—MF+-_A=+—RHLFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries 33. B AT
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 and 2014 are RZE—=FR=F—NF+=A=+
as follows: —RB - ARAFRIMBARGEAT :
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iiftas/
IR RESA ANERAKELH
P Ty HREBRRA FisCRTRATELA FEERE TERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B# 53 B 53

2014 013 014 013 2014 013 2014 013
ZE-MmE “3--F Z§3-mEF “T--F -E-MEF “T--F ZB-mF —T--F

Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC 15529,980,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited* ~~~ PEARE 2998000057 and beauty products
HEERRERERA AN FERHEERRERER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC RMB8000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retailof skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited hEARE AREB000007 and beauty products provision
HAERE=BIERERAR of beauty treatrents and
SAP services

HERBELENEAER
BHEREEROPRE

(Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC RMB2500000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited REAR ARE250000070 products; provision of beauty
BB ARIERARAR treatments and skin care and

beauty consulting and training
HEEERZAER  RUXA
R REREXARRRER

Sl

Hainan Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC RIMB2,500,000 - - - 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited HEAR ARE25000007 (note a) products; provision of
BEEARIERARAR (Hzta) beauty treatments and beauty
consulting and training

HERERXAER  REXA
e L]
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—HLFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B ATFE @
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iifrgs/
IR BESA ANERAKELR
LAER ey HREBRRE FisCRTRATELA EER E:E 0
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# 53 B% 53

04 N3 W4 B AW N3 NW 0B
S§-mE ZF--F ZR-RE CFCF CR-RE CTCF CR-RE F R

LEAREERIERERAT  ThePRC RVB500,000 - - - 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retall of skin care
hEIRE ARES000007T (note a) and beauty products
(Hita) HERBEERRFRER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC US$1:480000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin
Cosmetics Company Limitec® ~~~ FEIARE 148000050 care and beauty products,
(Formerly known as Shanghai aromatherapeutic products,
FullBeauty Cosmetics Company provision of skin treatment,
Limited) beauty and SAP service
LEanzERhaARAR! FERHERERFAERR
(iR LEERBIERARLR) PRERMNEE FER
SPRR TS
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan NT$201,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited (Formerly HE 20100000037 &% and beaty products
known as Netural Beauty FEREERRRFRER

Cosmetics Company Limited)
BREEMRERNBRAT
(AR BB RARAR)

Huei Yao Investrent Company Taiwan NTS122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited aE 120434203 2% REER
BERERAERAT

Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT$50000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of beauty consulting
Company Limited aE 50000000876 % (noted)  andtraining

TREEEANERCERN (Mite)  REASRRB RSN
BRAF
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HE_Z-—MF+_A=+—HILFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

170

33. B ARFE (@

Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iEL/
HREIR BEIR ARARANEAR
DRER Ty HREERRE FeCRTRATELA FEERE IEEH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B B B
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z%-WE “5--F CF-WE -3--F CF-WE CF--F CF-mE _50F
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68609858 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
SRED Class B shares FERR
MYR10000
(lass A shares
BRERETEH
68609858
ARERETY
10000
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care and
SREE SRRE% beauty products
HEEERFAER
(Great Glamour Company Limited BV 15950,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AEGBREE SO000ET RAER
Next Success International Limited BV Uss100 100% 100% - = 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBUEREE 100%TC RERR
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~~ BVI 15950000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
SEAEREE  S000ET L
Natural Beauty Bio- Technology Hong Kong HK$10000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
(Hong Kong) Company Limited &% 10000%7C products and provision
BAZENIE (B7%) BRAR of beauty reatments
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B A RIFE (@)
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
ias/
AMAIR BER FRAREKEAR
DRER eny HREEERRA iR TRAEELH FEEER IEEH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B B E# 5

204 013 014 013 014 1 2014 2013
“E-mE -3--F Z§-mE -T--F CE-MEF “T--F ZB-mF —3--F

Natural Beauty China Holding Hong Kong HK$200000 100% - - 100% 100% - - 100%  Investment holding
Limied &% 000ET Rk
BAZTERRERAR
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC US$2,600000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Bio-Med Company Lirited® hEIRE 2600000%T health supplement
HEERRENREERAA FERHERER
FEERERANRNARDD  ThepRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholeszle
hEIRE ARE60000007T and retal of skin care and
beauty products
FRRRRE  HERTEEE
RERER
Notes: FizE -
(@  The subsidiaries are deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2014 @ FERNBAREREZE_ZT—MNE+=
A=+—BILFEEEFM -
= The subsidiary is foreign investment enterprise with limited liability in the * ZHBRARATEAEREEINERE -
PRC.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the P 4R Bl G A R RE R+ R A8 A eI B /2B
end of the year or at any time during the year. NRIBBITEREREECEEES ©
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Results 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—ETEF2F —FT——F —FT——F —T—=F ZB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET & FHET FET F#ExT
REVENUE PN 485,389 591,295 483,438 439,421 505,761
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR A 75,848 173,647 155,251 83,052 116,274
INCOME TAX EXPENSE i8R (45,138) (58475) (36,143) (24,593) (44,794)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 30,710 115,172 119,108 58,459 71,480
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AR AL FEMRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY RATEEA 31,303 115,123 119,268 58,269 71,480
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIERR RS (593) 49 (160) 190 =
30,710 115,172 119,108 58,459 71,480
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
At 31 December
At+=ZA=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—EFF —F——F —FT——F —FT—=F ZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T T BT FH&T
TOTAL ASSETS BB 940,931 958,626 884,060 982,067 977,730
TOTAL LIABILITIES waE (158,297) (170,441) (136,064) (193,809)  (203,824)
782,634 788,185 747,996 788,258 773,906
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS  Z<A RI#EH AFE(L
OF THE COMPANY e 782,487 788,004 748,183 788,258 773,906
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR S 147 181 (187) = -
782,634 788,185 747,996 788,258 773,906
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